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PROFILE OF THE COMPANY UJV REZ, a. s., AND ITS
EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT

Our services focus in particular on supporting the safe and effective operation of energy sources, on
services in the area of the fuel cycle of nuclear power plants, on complex services of management
of radioactive and other waste and on the design and related engineering activities. In the area of
nuclear medicine on the Czech market, we hold a privileged position in the production and
distribution of radio-pharmaceuticals for the positron emission tomography (PET) imaging method
and we operate three PET production centres with our own cyclotrons in Prague, Brno and Rez.

We also deal with research and development activities for nuclear reactors in operation, new
generation reactors (GEN IV.) and small modular reactors in accordance with the needs of energy
development in the Czech Republic and the European Union. We started working on our own
concept of a small fast, gas-cooled reactor under the name HeFASTo in 2021.

We responsibly support national and European goals in the field of reducing COzemissions through
innovative programs of ageing management for energy equipment, the application of advanced
materials or the rapid implementation of the results of our research projects into operational practice.
We are a versatile partner for energy investors and operators worldwide.

UJV Rez is one of the Czech leaders in the development of hydrogen technologies for the transport
and energy sectors. We manage a number of important domestic and international hydrogen projects
and provide our services to commercial partners and state institutions.

We base the further development of the company's competencies on the human resources
management strategy, the support for vocational training, and the targeted intergenerational transfer
of our know-how. Our specialists appreciate the opportunity to gain the latest knowledge through
membership in prestigious international professional and research institutions and to gain

experience from multilateral projects.

The core tasks of UJV Rez for the next period include the support of design and engineering
activities for a new nuclear power source in the Czech Republic, active participation in analyses of
the possibilities of using small and medium-sized nuclear reactors in national energy and
completion of supporting hydrogen projects. In connection with the updated EU taxonomy, we also
anticipate strengthening our position as the main workplace for research and development support
of the Deep Repository Project in the Czech Republic. As part of the obligations arising from our
membership in the CEZ Group, we are preparing a systematisation of measures to meet the
principles of sustainable investment (ESG).
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY AS
OF 31 December 2021
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FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders, Business Partners, Colleagues,

The presented annual report provides information required by law on the state of our company and
the results of 2021. These data show that the ongoing pandemic situation did not have a negative
effect on the fulfilment of our obligations to shareholders nor did it reduce the level of our services to
customers. We met the EBITDA indicator in 2021 at 109.4% | would like to thank all the employees

of UJV Rez for this good resuilt.

The year 2021 was successful for us not only economically, but also in the structure of orders.
Thanks to the rapid consolidation of the new composition of the UJV Group and the strengthening
of the synergy effects of our services for investors and suppliers in the nuclear power industry, we
have won several strategic contracts abroad and concluded significant framework agreements. We
have established an organizational unit in Egypt that will coordinate our technical support to the
Egyptian state supervisor ENRRA in the licensing of the first local El Dabaa nuclear power plant. We
have signed a framework agreement for engineering support in the implementation of two new units
of the Hungarian nuclear power plant PAKS Il. We have concluded two agreements with Electricité
de France - we have become a member of the advisory board of the French NUWARD for small
reactor concept and we have signed a memorandum of cooperation. We continue with the support
of the construction of a NPP in Mochovce, Slovakia, and with contracts for the decommissioning of
nuclear resources in Slovakia and ltaly. We have also successfully completed several studies for

foreign concepts of small modular reactors.

Last year, we also initiated the development of our own reactor HeFASTO, which falls under the
category of advanced Generation IV modular reactors. The high-temperature helium-cooled reactor,
which will generate the fissile material itself in the fuel, is the first concept of its kind in Europe.
Following this project, we also obtained a patent for the solution of a key safety system for high-
temperature gas-cooled reactors. We also organized a number of seminars and awareness-raising
events on the topic of small reactors last year, which brought their potential closer to the general

public.

The professional support of the operation and safety of the Temelin and Dukovany nuclear power
plants remains the focus of our services on the domestic market. All orders for CEZ were fulfilled
and handed over on time in 2021. A number of our research and development projects in the field
of nuclear safety and material engineering are also linked to the operational services for power
plants. In 2021, we also received two prestigious awards for the successful solution and certification
of the methodologies we developed - the Honourable Mention “Visionaries 2021" and the Award of
the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic for the Czech Idea of 2021.

In line with our long-term strategy and environmental responsibility, we significantly expanded our
activities in the field of hydrogen technology in 2021. In addition to studies for the production of green
hydrogen, we address the accumulation of energy in hydrogen, the possibility of converting it to SNG
or the development of our own electrolyser and reversible fuel cell. In the area of emission-free
mobility, we are newly leading a project for the development of a hydrogen truck on a Tatra chassis,
we are researching the possibilities of hydrogen trains on regional lines or we are working on a
hydrogen range extender for electric vehicles. We have signed a strategic memorandum of
cooperation in the field of hydrogen with Prazska plynarenska a.s.

Sl
Our tdp=end- diagnostic preparations for nuclear medicine continue to improve th
quality of life of cancer patients. We reliably supplied 17 medical facilities througfjc
Republic, and we also launched a new radio-pharmaceutical drug for the diagnosis

in 2021. \
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Caring for employees and their personal development remains our key priority. | personally consider
2021 to be a year of improving working relations. In the area of remuneration, we have successfully
completed the implementation of a new transparent remuneration system. We have prepared a
managerial skills development programme for our leadership and strategic positions, we continue to
provide extensive on-line training both for mandatory and optional skills, and we are constantly
expanding the range of benefits. We also support employees in their leisure and sports activities. In
2021, we were announced the Czech Cycling Employer of the Year and we financially supported ten
extracurricular projects within the new internal call of UJV Grants, which were designed and voted

on by the employees themselves.

Maintaining a high standard of occupational safety, safety of technical equipment and fire protection
is a solid foundation for all processes in our company. We also work closely with our trade unions in
this respect. In addition to the purchase of new equipment and the continuous improvement of the
qualifications of relevant staff, we completed a long-term investment project of securing controlled

area borders or strengthened our cybersecurity last year.

High standards of processes in the UJV Rez were also confirmed by a proper IHR audit in 2021 -
the audit company DNV issued to us the certificates of ISO 9001, 1400, and 45001 for the next

period.

Shareholders confirmed the stable composition of our company's Board of Directors at the June
General Meeting. A subsequent term of office for two members of the Board of Directors was
approved (Ing. Daniel Jifi€ka, Ing. Patrik 8patzal). The General Meeting also confirmed a subsequent
term of office of the members of the Supervisory Board Ing. Bohdan Zronek and JUDr. Marek Slégl.
It newly re-elected Ing. Tomas Pleska¢, MBA, who replaced Ing. Martin Jasek, M.A. in the

Supervisory Board.

2021 was another of the successful series of years for the UJV Rez and demonstrated once again
the potential of synergy cooperation within our Technology Group of UJV. | think we are well
prepared for the challenges posed by the current energy situation at home and abroad.

In Husinec — Rez, 1 April 2022

™

Ing. Danie/ Jificka
Chairman of the Board of Directors
7/
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Ing. Daniel Jificka, Chairman of the Board of Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Other Members of the Board of Directors of UJV ReZ, a. s.

Ing. Tomas Novotny Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
Director of the Finance Section Director of the Radio-pharmaceutical Division

G-

Ing. Vladimir Poklop Ing. Jan Stancl
Member of the Board of Directors, Director of Member of the Board of Directors

the Integrity and Technical Engineering Division
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

UJV Rez, a. s., is certified according to international standards 1ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and ISO 45001
and plans, implements and verifies its activities, processes, products and services so as to achieve
quality products with the high added value while minimizing negative impacts on the environment.
with the parallel emphasis on the safety of implemented activities, products and services. The
company regularly reviews the integrated management system policy, sets measurable objectives
each year that develop this policy, reviews and manages risks, and develops a safety culture. The
purpose of the integrated management system and safety culture is not only to comply with the
requirements of legislation, but to raise above all the awareness at each employee about the need
to consider aspects of safety, quality, reliability and environmental protection in each activity and

decision-making.

Our company also promotes the principles of quality, reliability, safety of activities and products and
environmental protection among its suppliers by systematically evaluating deliveries and carrying
out audits at major suppliers.

In 2021, the management system of UJV Rez, a. s., was inspected by a supervisory audit by the

DNV company but also by a number of our major customers, such as CEZ, a. s., Slovenské
elektrarne, a.s. or ATOMPROEKT, with whom we continue to cooperate as a qualified supplier.
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PEOPLE IN UJV REZ

UJV Rez is fully aware of the key importance of its employees. Their high level of expertise and
transfer of know-how are the basic pillars of our strategy. We pay close attention to the further
education of our experts. We also emphasize the development of managerial skills of managers and
other key employees.

Structure of employees by age and education
At the end of 2021, UJV ReZ had 706 employees.
In December 2021, the average age was 45.34 years.

Age structure of employees in 2021

%

e to2b 2.41
26-30 9.91
31-40 26.48
41-50 26.49

51-60 22.81

o e | e o

61 and more 11.90

At the end of 2021, the company had 63.88 % of university-educated employees, 7.93 % of
employees have completed their doctoral studies (Ph.D. degree).

Structure of employees' education in 2021

%

® Primary 0.28
Skilled 8.22

® Advanced secondary education 26.63
@ Higher vocational education 0.99
@ University-educated 55.95
@ University doctoral 7.93

11



UJV Rez, a. s., People in UJV Rez

In 2021, the drawing of funds for the development activities of employees was significantly affected
by the unfavourable epidemiological situation, when numerous educational activities were cancelled.
Despite the adverse situation, we spent 4,270 TCZK. In addition to formal training, our employees
participate in professional congresses and conferences in the Czech Republic and abroad.

Trend of staff development costs (in TCZK)

6000
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

UJV Rez, a. s., participated in the solution of 37 national and 19 international research projects in
2021. Their content is based on the strategic focus of the company, namely the development of
competencies in nuclear technologies and the support for the operation of power units, the
radioactive and other waste management, the application of hydrogen technologies in energy and
transport and the development of new radio-pharmaceuticals for medical use.

We also initiated works on the development of HeFASTo reactor, which falls under the category of
advanced Generation IV modular reactors. The high-temperature helium-cooled reactor, which will
generate the fissile material itself in the fuel, is the first concept of its kind in Europe. It will be used
primarily as a heat source for efficient hydrogen production and the chemical industry and it will also
be possible to use it for the processing of spent fuel from conventional nuclear units.

We participate in the international project PUMMA, which focuses on the use of plutonium in
Generation IV reactors including addressing the issue of multi-recycling.

In the area of supporting the operation of nuclear units, work continued on projects for the
development and improvement of methodologies for assessing the useful life of nuclear power plants
(APAL, STRUMAT, TNR VVER-1000 Integrity Assessment), development of tools and
methodologies for the management of cables useful life (Team Cables) and using robots in

operational control areas (CHARM).

In the area of radioactive waste management, we joined two new working groups within the
European EURAD project in 2021, namely Container Corrosion under Disposal Conditions
(CONCORD) and Chemo-Mechanical AGIng of Cementitious Materials (MAGIC). In another
European project, Pre-disposal Management of Radioactive Waste (PREDIS), we continued to
develop and improve methods for the safe and environmentally friendly preparation of low and
intermediate level radioactive waste for disposal.

In the field of hydrogen technology, we focused mainly on hydrogen propulsion (light quadricycle
HyVAN, commercial vehicle up to 3.5 tons ZEBRA, and heavy truck TATRA), fuel cells and
developments in the field of electrolytic hydrogen production and fuel cells with emphasis on
innovative materials for these devices. (CATAMAC).

In the field of ragio-pparmaceuticals, we completed the development and launched METHIONIN
(11C) METHYL UJV ReZ (11C-MET), which allows a gentle and timely diagnosis of brain tumours
by positron emission tomography (PET).

The success of the UJV Rez research teams is evidenced not only by a number of resulting patents
and certified methodologies, but also by the constant interest of foreign consortia in the participation
of our company in prestigious international projects. We have received a number of awards in the
Czech Republic this year as well. Among the most important, for example, the Award of the
Technology Agency of the Czech Republic for the Czech Idea of 2021 for the new computational
model for nuclear fuel security or the Honourable Mention in the competition Visionaries 2021 for
works on the methodology of regenerative annealing for the internal parts of VVER 440 reactors

belong.

UJV Rez, a. s. - research and development expenditure in 2021 (in MCZK)

total: of which subsidies received:

Research and development 408.8 86.5
expenditure
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND STATE OF
ASSETS OF UJV REZ, a. s.

Operating results of the company

In 2021, the company reported operating profit in the amount of 87,5 MCZK, which is about 1,3
MCZK higher compared to prior year. Sales grew significantly in 2021 by more than 128 MCZK
compared to 2020. The pre-tax result amounted to 78,5 MCZK; Adjusted for the extraordinary
income and expense from the sale of financial assets (shares) in 2020, the result was approximately
at the same level. The company met all the main financial indicators set out in the 2021 annual plan.

The main market for UJV Rez, a. s. remains the Czech Republic, especially the CEZ Group. EU
sales remained at a similar level as in the previous period.

Distribution of operating revenues in 2021

Distribution of operating revenues in 2021

%

® Czech Republic 84
e EU 11
© Other abroad 5

Distribution of operating revenues in 2021 according
to customers

%

»  CEZGroup 61
Subsidy funds 5

@ SURAO 1
@ Other in the Czech Republic 16
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 4

[ Other abroad 13
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Share of individual departments in total operating revenues
in 2021

%

Nuclear Safety and Reliability 15.2

Integrity and Technical Engineering 357

Radioactive Waste and 53
Decommissioning )

® ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA 23.8

@ Radio-pharmaceuticals 10.3

@ Operational and administrative sections 9.7

Structure of assets and capital

In 2021, the value of the assets of UJV Rez, a. s. decreased significantly by 340 MCZK to the value

of 3,123 MCZK. The main reason is the decrease in long-term financial assets
by 274 MCZK to 868 MCZK, especially due to the reduction in the registered capital of Skoda Praha.

At the same time, current assets decreased by 162 MCZK to 1,067 MCZK due to a decrease in cash

by 129 MCZK. In the area of current assets, the effect was demonstrated of lower inventories (a
decrease of 36 MCZK) and of an increase in receivables by 3 MCZK.

In 2021, the equity increased by less than 59 MCZK to the value of 2,124 MCZK. The increase in
equity was mainly due to retained earnings from previous years and the current year.

In 2021, external resources decreased by 390 MCZK to 978 MCZK, mainly due to reduction in
payables to shareholders of 404 MCZK.

Investment Projects_
In 2021, the total investment expenditures of the company amounted to 196 MCZK.

The following actions belonged among the most important investment projects in 2021:

e Revitalization of the infrastructure of the premises in the total amount of 78.5 MCZK, the goal
of which is to renew the production and service workshops, increase their operational
functionality and reduce the energy intensity of buildings. The company continued with
projects started in 2020, namely the projects to reduce the energy intensity of buildings and
equipment with partial use of government subsidies. The Radiochemistry building was
insulated and the public lighting on the premises was renovated using solar panels as a
source of electric energy. A several-year project was completed to expand the technical
security and control of employees working in the controlled area at the facilities, where the
storage and subsequent disposal of radioactive waste is provided. in 2021, a long-prepared
project for the revitalization of the Radiochemistry building began.

15
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e Renovation of obsolete equipment and acquisition of new technically more advanced devices

for trouble-free assurance and expansion of production capacity in the total amount of 95.4
MCZK, in particular in the field of radio-pharmaceutical production, RAW disposal,
mechanical testing of test specimens and the purchase of equipment for the analysis of
contamination of premises or production and service equipment and the control of the safety
of employees in the elimination of environmental burdens. In 2021, the revitalization of the
oldest PET centre in the Czech Republic in Prague at the Homolka Hospital began, where
the cyclotron for the production of radio-pharmaceuticals will be replaced, too.

Renewal and extension of the existing HW and SW in the amount of 15.9 MCZK. It was
mainly an upgrade of SW in the field of safety of employees working in the controlled area.
The production software needed for the quality provision of services in the field of design,
computer, and engineering works especially in the energy industry was upgraded. In the case
of HW, it was mainly the refurbishment of servers and the addition of mobile IT (note-books)
due to the safety requirement to protect the health of employees and the transition to work

from their homes.

Ownership interests of UJV Rez, a. s.
As of 31 December 2021, the subsidiaries of UJV Rez, a. s. include:

e Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
e Vyzkumny a zkuSebni ustav Plzef s.r.o.
e SKODA PRAHA as.

All three of the above-mentioned business corporations are 100% owned subsidiary business
corporations pursuant to Section 74 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations, with which

UJV Rez, a. s., forms the UJV Group.
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REPORT ON RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLING
ENTITY AND THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND BETWEEN
THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND THE ENTITIES
CONTROLLED BY THE SAME CONTROLLING ENTITY
FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD 2021

1. Structure of Relations

The controlled entity and compiler of report on relations

UJV Rez, a. s.

Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec

Ident. No. 46356088

The company is registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section B, Insert 1833.

The controlling entity
CEZ a.s.

Duhova 2/1444

140 53 Prague 4

Ident. No. 45274649
The company is registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section B, Insert 1581.

In the relevant accounting period, CEZ, a. s. owns shares corresponding to 52.46% of the voting
rights of UJV Rez, a. s.

The UJV Groupas of 31 December 2021

: . . | Organization
Parent business corporation Registered office of the company: Ident. No.
UJV Rez, a. s. (UJV) Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec 46356088
Organization Capital
Subsidiary business corporations | Registered office of the company: 9 participation
Ident. No. .
(in %)
Centrum Vy(zé‘\‘;;)“ ReZS.O. | Liavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec | 26722445 UJV -100
Duhova 1444/2 .
SKODA PRAHA a.s. (SP) 140 00 Prague 4 00128201 UJV -100
Vyzkumny a zku$ebni ustav Pizefi | Tylova 1581/46, Jizni Predmésti, .
sr.0. (VZU) 301 00 Pizef 47718684 UJv-100

Other entities controlled by the same controlling entity
Annex 1 to this report provides a scheme for the structure of the business group of the Controlling

Entity.”
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2. Role of the Controlled Entity within the Group

The role of UJV Rez, a. s., is mainly to provide services in the nuclear energy sector, while a
significant part of these services is provided to the controlling entity.

3. Method and means of control

CEZ, a. s., controls UJV Rez, a. s., through a majority share of voting rights at the General
Meeting.

4. An overview of actions taken on the initiative or in the interest of the
controlling person or persons controlled by it

During the relevant period, UJV ReZ, a. s., did not engage in any action relating to assets
exceeding 10% of the equity of UJV ReZ, a. s., as determined in accordance with the latest
financial statement on the initiative or in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities.

5. Overview of Mutual Agreements

An overview of mutual agreements between UJV Rez, a. s., and CEZ, a. s., and between UJV
Rez, a. s., and entities controlled by CEZ, a. s., is attached as Appendix No. 2 to this report. These
are not only contracts concluded in the relevant accounting period but also effective contracts from

the past.

The provision of performance and consideration took place on the basis of concluded contracts, in
accordance with the conditions usual in business relations and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the contracts.

The performance provided by the controlled entity to the controlling entity consisted of providing

services at an agreed price. The consideration for the services provided by the controlled entity
consisted of financial payment based on the price agreed in the contract.

The same principle applied to contracts with subsidiaries of CEZ, a. s., and with subsidiaries of
UJV Rez, a. s.
Contracts between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the controlled entity

and the entities controlled by the same controlling entity listed in Annex 2 are available
in the registration system of UJV Rez, a. s., for possible tracing and inspection by authorized

persons.

6. Assessment of whether the controlled entity has suffered harm

No harm was caused to UJV ReZ, a. s., on the basis of agreements concluded in the relevant
period between UJV ReZ, a. s. and CEZ, a. s. and other entities controlled by CEZ, a. s.

18
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7. Vesting period

This Relationships Report is prepared for the accounting period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021.

8. Evaluation of advantages and disadvantages arising from the relations
between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the
controlled entity and the entities controlled by the same controlling entity

The company has standard business relationships with the controlling entity, CEZ, a. s. and

entities controlled by the same controlling entity, and it does not have any advantages or

disadvantages from these relationships. For the controlled entity, no risks arise from these
relationships, nor did it incur any damage that should be subject to settlement pursuant to Section

71 or Section 72 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., On Business Corporations.

9. Statement of the statutory body of the company

The elaboration of the Report on Relationships pursuant to Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll,, the
Act on Business Corporations, was ensured by the statutory body of UJV Rez, a .s. within the

period specified by law.

In Husinec — Rez, on 30 March 2022

/ /\____3 e
77 7
[ //
In/gj. Daniel Jificka g Ing. Tom&$ Novotny Ing. Patrik S’pé'tzal, MBA
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board Memz?féf the Board
; of Directors of Directors Directors

Vi
Ing. Jan Stancl Ing. Vladimir Poklop
Member of the Boa Member of the Board
of E&irectors of Directors
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Annex 2: to the Report on Relations for 2021 - Overview of Mutual Agreements

20

gontaet Name of the contractin
number Description of the subject matter of the contract 9
UJV Rez company
21NO00371 | Repair and commissioning of HVAC incl. exchange of filters AZ KLIMA a.s.
21N007568 | SO 363 repair of the HVAC unit - electrical heater AZ KLIMA a.s.
12SMP153 Contract for combined services incl. amendments Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
14SMP482 C.on’gracjt for offtake point connection to the local low voltage Centrum vyzkumu Re s.r.0.
distribution system
15SMP428 Agreemerlt for relmbursement of costs to create provisions Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
(decommissioning)
16SMLO54 C.on’FracF for offtake equipment connection to the local low voltage Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
distribution system
16SML145 Letter of intent - to the project Sorption Module - TRIO |l Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
16SMN335 Agreement for participation in the prOJect_ - TACR - Development of Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.0.
tools for the study of transport of contaminants
17SML063 Agrleen?ent for participation in the pl’Oje(?t - Sgrptlon Module for the Centrum vyzkumu Re? s.r.0.
liquidation of severe nuclear power accident incl. amendments
17SML119 Confidentiality agreement (helium Loop S-Allegro) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
17SMN356 Framework agreement for administration of public contracts Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
17SMP037 Agreement for the operation of a vent discharge stack incl. Centrum vyzkumu Re s.r.0.
amendments
17SMP038 Framework agreement f(.)r the pl.'OVISIon of services in the area RAW Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
and spent nuclear fuel disposal incl. amendments
17SMP284 ;Zg')se agreement for the lease of 3 transport containers (for structure Centrum vyzkumu Re s.r.0.
17SMP299 Letter of intent - for the project RADEMET - TRIO Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
17SMP544 Contract for thg pro.wsmn of services in the area the Atomic Act and Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
related regulations incl. amendments
18SML040 Contract for cooperation on the project: RADEMET - TRIO Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
18SML089 Contra.ct er the.l.mplementation of output - Verlﬁued procedure of Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
removing impurities from the gaseous refrigerant
18SML100 Contract for personal data processing Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.1.0.
18SMN189 Framework agreement for the provision of laboratory services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
Agreement for participation in the project (TK01030116) — Design , N
18SMN354 concept of safety critical .. ALLEGRO Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP264 Contract for the provision of services in the field of registered library Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP265 Contract for bookkeeping and tax consultancy services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP366 Contract for energy supply incl. amendments Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP397 Agreement i"or participation in the project - New inorganic materials for Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
the nuclear industry
Agreement for participation in the project (TK01010170) - Development . N
18SMP445 of the SUPCHANFLOW computational model Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
Agreement for participation in the project (TK01010206) - ] s
18SMPASS Computational model for thermo-mechanical behaviour of fuel Centrum vjzkumu Rez s.r.o.
18SMP470 Contract for the lease of premises incl. amendments Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP495 Contract for the provision of regular combined services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP496 Framework agreement for the provision of combined services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
18SMP505 Amendment No. 1 - reimbursement of costs to create reserves Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
19SMN216 _Cont.ract for wor.k - Nqn_—destrugtwe and destructive analysis of c W v U Re$ s.ro.
irradiated material samples
19SMP001 Contrac't for the provision pf services related to cooling of the LVR-15 ( ntrum e¥ sro.
reactor incl. amendments
19SMP025 Contract for the provision of a distribution system service @trﬂ%‘ﬁ/@lku@ﬁez S.r.o.
oy
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%3%?: Description of the subject matter of the contract Namelohtigicontectia
UJV Rez P el
tosmpoze | Conract foroffake saipment copnecton 0 the ocal IELIEISES | Genirum viekumu Rez s
19SMP084 Contract for work - Post irradiation testing of zirconium alloy E110 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
19SMP118 Contract for the provision of services in the structure 250 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
198MP215 Framework agreement for the use of storage Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
19SMP321 Agreement for participation in the project (TK01030125) - Energy well | Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
19SMP353 Agreement for participation in the project (TK02030059) - EFEKT Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
19SMP450 Agreement for participation in the project (TK02010136) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
19SMP539 Contract for the provision of ICT services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SMLO05 Ger.1eral agreement for intellectual property right rules for ALLEGRO Centrum vyzkumu Re s.r.0.
project
20SML046 Agreement for participation in the project - ALMARA Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SML131 Contract for the use of output - TRANSURANUS (TK01010206) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SML139 Contract for the lease of space below containers Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SML152 Contract for the use of output - SUBCHANFLOW (TK01010170) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
Agreement for participation in the project (TK03020149) - Corium
20SML180 properties measurement and analysis of the spill during high Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.0.
temperatures
zosmLzo0 | P e ety | Gantmakumu R 10
Agreement for participation in the project (TK03010119) - Applicability
20SML207 of small and medium-sized nuclear reactors in the power industry of Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
the Czech Republic
Agreement for participation in the project - Testing methodology and
20SML212 establishing the acceptability criteria for irradiated ATF (Accident Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
Tolerant Fuel) specimens
20SML220 Agreement for participation in the project- Evaluation of Théta batches | Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SML275 Agreement for participation in the project TK03020085 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SMN029 Contract for wo_rk - Evaluation of the effect of increased power for the Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.1.0.
control of chemical modes
20SMN277 Contract for work - A(.iditional expfariments for the study of the disposal Centrum vyzkumu ReZ .r.0.
of leaky fuel assemblies at Temelin NPP
20SMN289 Contract for work - Evaluation of the fluency of neutrons with PK3+ fuel | Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.
20SMN345 :]c;rtltar:\:lt ::,rn v;:;rl; -at(zlhemlcal analyses of samples and evaluation of Centrum vyzkumu Re? s.r.0.
20SMPO54 2P(l)1;<;hase contract for the purchase of liquid nitrogen for years 2020- Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SMPQ58 Contract for work - Carrier for the Chouca radiation probe Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.0.
20SMP295 Contract for energy supply Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
z0swpaae | Convectforcooperalon i th ersport of spot nuclear LEl (SNEIY | Gentum wakumu Rez 0
20SMP421 Contract for work - Validation Vessel Detection System (VDS) 030 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
20SMP425 s;r;:.a;t EfE; \;vgrk - Evaluation of quality and suitability of the comput. Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
20SMP441 Contract for metrology services Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMLO14 + | Contract for the use of output of project TH02030543 A\\r\r ~ BBentrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.
21SMLO18 Contract for the use of output Eg:v ., Cg{.\‘b{um vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
21SML020 Contract for the use of output of project TACR Regnet S ""Ci;?egtr m vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SML023 | Contract for the use of output of TH02020113 \ % "y, | Ceftiim vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.
\ "Oney
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Contract i
number Description of the subject matter of the contract Name of the contracting
UJV Rez OIS0
21SML049 Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMLO71 Contract for human resources and other services Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.0.
21SML084 Contract for credit framework Centrum vyzkumu RezZ s.r.o.
21SML094 Contract for the lease of space - garage no. 21 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
Agreement for the termination of contracts for offtake equipment . s
ZISHEDSO connection to the local low voltage distribution system (LV LDS) Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
21SML122 Contract for the lease of space - structure 213 and 251 Centrum vyzkumu RezZ s.r.o.
218SML211 COLLABORATION AGREEMENT JRC Centrum vyzkumu RezZ s.r.o.
21SML221 A'ssess.lng. t.he uncertainties during evalu'atlon of the dimensions of Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
discontinuities as part of ultra-sound testing
21SMNO015 Purchase contract - Non-standard storage unit Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMN049 Agre‘ement for accession to Amendments 1-6 Contract for catering Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
services
21SMNO58 Behaviour of boric acid on strong alkaline anion exchange resin of Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
Dukovany NPP
21SMN064 CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT for Centrum vzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
CEZ- CVR
21SMNO75 Purchase contract - MOZAIK non-standard radioactive waste storage | Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.
21SMN116 Cover sheets for Mozaiks Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMN163 Contract for work - LOCA test IPMAB Sensor Assembly Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMN207 Scientific technical support of UJD Centrum vyzkumu RezZ s.r.o.
21SMN215 ORD - Production of 15 pc shields for non-standard casks Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMN339 3D model of scanned spaces/rooms of Dukovany NPP Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMN346 ('i;r;tract for work - 3D scanning rollers of polar crane (PMJ) of Temein Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
21SMN412 3D laser scanning of selected rooms for RB1-RB4 Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP024 AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE PROJECT CK02000044 | Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.o.
21SMPO41 Contract for the operation and management of facility - Substation Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
TS421,426
21SMP117 ORD - Assessment of the condition of reactor building structure Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP140 Update of the approval of documentation for site decommissioning Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP158 Contract for work and contract of mandate - Drawing up a tax retum Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP243 ORD - Alanine dosimetry for CVR Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP278 Contract.fOI: tec_::hnlcal assstanc.e.f.or calculating provisions for the Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
decommissioning of nuclear facilities
21SMP318 ORD - Static platform assessment Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP366 Experimental hall Plzefi extension of the administr. section Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP386 VL\J,:thf ultrafiltration and nanofiltration in the processing of radioactive Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.0.
21SMP430 ORD - Production of a 67 mm diameter cold crucible Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
21SMP460 ORD - Support in the processing of ZL for Water Chemistry Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o.
Assessment
17SMN253 Contract for the provision of a distribution system service from the CEZ Distribuce, a. s.
22KV voltage level
18SMN289 Contract for 'con.nectlon of the local distribution system to the high SEZ Distribuce, a. s.
voltage distribution system
21SMLO70 Contract for the processing of personal data and GBTC / Q\Y CBZ\lQistribuce, a.s.
CONTRACT FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF EASEMENT - ) ]
21SML255 SERVITUDE : f\,;f%zlz {a\nbuce, a.s.
21SMN115 Contract:_fc;r the transfer of design documentation and design‘\i%@W sz‘? rgetické produkty,
\\(?.'1 g?"-\} 74
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Contract .
number Description of the subject matter of the contract Name of the contracting
UJV Rez coinpany
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML278 L
voltage distribution system S.r.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML279 -
voltage distribution system S.I.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML280 |
voltage distribution system S.r.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML281 i
voltage distribution system S.r.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML282 —
voltage distribution system S.1.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML283 T
voltage distribution system S.I.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML284 I
voltage distribution system S.r.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML285 e
voltage distribution system S.1.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML286 M
voltage distribution system S.1.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
20SML287 .
voltage distribution system S.I.0.
20SML288 Contract for.elec.:tricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
voltage distribution system S.I.0.
Contract for electricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby
20SML289 i ’
voltage distribution system S.r.o.
20SML295 Contract for .elet':tricity offtake equipment connection to the local low CEZ Energetické sluzby,
voltage distribution system S.I.0.
20SMP426 Usufructuary lease contract no. 20410198 - Local distribution system ng Energetické sluzby,
21SMNQ02 Contract for the provision of a distribution system service ng Energetické sluzby,
21SMNO051 Framework agreement for the provision of a distribution system service ng Energeticke sluzby,
21SMN363 Contract for offtake point connection to the low voltage distribution CEZ Energetické sluzby,
system S.r.o.
21SMP148 Contract for offtake electrical energy -covering operational losses SF% Energetické sluzby,
13SMN035 lr:litt;ar of intent for the supplies of thermal energy, incl. Amendment GEZ Energo, s.r.0.
Lease contract - lease of boiler room spaces and land plot of the KVET
HISMPAFe source combined heat and power unit (CGU) CEZ Energo, s.r.0.
20SMLO79 | Lease contract - CEZ Energo CEZ Energo, s.r.o.
20SMN069 Contract for thermal energy supply CEZ Energo, s.r.o.
20SMNO096 PURCHASE CONTRACT (new CGU gas meter) CEZ Energo, s.r.o.
20SMP084 Contract for the provision of natural gas supply CEZ Energo, s.r.o.
Contract for offtake equipment connection to the local natural gas
20SMP0BS | 1o on system CEZ Energo, s.r.0.
20SMP128 Contract for tr?e procurement of the operation of the combined heat EZ Energo, s.r..
and power unit
15SMP126 TRANE servicing incl. amendments CEZ Energoservis spol s r.o.
15SMP528 Framework agreement - Technical assistance of Dukovany NPP CEZ Energoservis spol s r.0.
Contract on the company - Fixation of radioactive sludge into the
16SML106 geopolymer Fatrix n\‘\\\/ ~f\2 Energoservis spol s r.0.
Agreement for maintenance, repairs, inspections and tech -
16SMP385 engineering activities at TC-CTKT,CTON,CTOJ -TEMELI P mC,POCLFB'z; nergoservis spol s r.0.
amend. =
18SMLO75 Contract for personal data processing @?Energoservis spol s r.o.
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Contract ;
number Description of the subject matter of the contract (rj:gea?lf tie-gontracting
OJV Rez pany
21SMP166 TEMELIN NPP, G739 - replacement of fire pumps CEZ Energoservis spol s r.0.
21SMP427 Temelin NPP - F255 - 1(2)VF- Change of TVD pipeline to DGS CEZ Energoservis spol s r.0.
19SMN294 Electricity supply 2020 CEZ ESCO, a.s.
19SMN295 | Gas supply 2020 CEZ ESCO, a.s.
20SML184 Contract for gas supply for the Combined heat and power unit 2021 CEZ ESCO, a.s.
20SML185 Contract for gas supply 2021 CEZ ESCO, a.s.
20SMNO090 Contract for gas supply for the Combined heat and power unit 2020 CEZ ESCO, a.s.
Contract for combined electricity supply services from the VHV and HV
20SMN234 | ctwork 2020 (building Plzef) CEZESCO, ass.
Contract for combined electricity supply services from the VHV and HV
20SMN235 | wwork 2021 (building Pizef) CEZ ESCO, as.
20SMN236 Combined gas supply services CEZ ESCO, a.s.
20SMN300 Contract for combined electricity supply from the VHV and HV to the CEZ ESCO, as.
LDS 2021
Contract for the provision of distribution system service from the 0.4kV
21SMNO059 voltage level (LV) CEZ ESCO, a.s.
Contract for combined electricity supply from the VHV and HV network
21SMN119 2022 Pizef building CEZ ESCO, a.s.
21SMN120 Eggtract for combined electricity supply from the VHV and HV to the CEZ ESCO, as.
12SMP271 GADUS SW - Licence agreement CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
18SML137 Contract for personal data processing(42/2018) CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
19SMP015 Provision of GADUS support services CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
19SMP537 Framework implementation agreement CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
21SMNO83 grarr}ework agreement for ICT between UJV Rez a.s. and CEZ ICT CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
ervices a.s.
21SMNO84 | Subcontract for ICT between UJV Rez a.s. and CEZ ICT Services a.s. | CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
Contract for the assignment of the ICT licence - Purchase of software .
21SMN085 (SW) from CEZ ICT services a.s. CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
Purchase contract for ICT - Purchase of hardware (HW) from CEZ ICT .
21SMNO086 services a.s. 03-2021 CEZ ICT Services, a.s.
21SMP457 Drawing up energy audits for the construction of photovoltaic plant Slrzg Obnovitelné zdroje,
4102281020 | Purchase of alpha nuclide detector CEZ, a.s.
4102383192 | Purchase of detector CEZ, a.s.
4102493513 | Purchase of alpha nuclide detector CEZ, a.s.
5600011467 | Reprographic services CEZ, a.s.
000595_2021 | Contract for the provision of works catering service - Temelin NPP CEZ, a. s.
000669_2021 | Contract for the provision of works catering service - Dukovany NPP CEZ, a. s.
000892_2021 Copt'rz_act for the p'rowsmn of bus passenger transport and related CEZ a.s.
activities - Temelin NPP
12SMP191 Contract for work (technical assistance for the provision of further CEZ a.s.
casks)
14SMLO05 Lease agreement CEZ, a.s.
15SMNQ55 Contract for thermal energy supply CEZ, a.s.
-15SMN337 Contract for the provision of bus transport CEZ, a.s.
15SMN395 Contract for thermal energy supply 4{“\\ CEZ, a.s.
15SMP518 | Contract for work (technical assistance for casks) / o NEEZ a.s.
17SMP145 | Selectivity database update [ g ?O'{ ! k';EZ, a.s.
e‘ '{J’/V{i mal
(o0 \\‘0 -
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(r:Izrr:Laeit Description of the subject matter of the contract RenloREt R clE
UJV Rez cOMRaly
Contract for work (marking and creation of a register of pipelines,
17SMP453 including the addition of selected attributes and links to selected CEZ a.s.
welded joints, pipeline hinges and supports and inspection points)
17SMP524 Provision of activities of the engineering solution group CEZ, a. s.
%SML063 Contract for cooperation in conducting audits of suppliers CEZ, a.s.
18SML065 Confidentiality Agreement CEZ, a. s.
18SML113 Non-disclosure Agreement CEZ, a.s.
18SML127 Non-disclosure Agreement CEZ, a. s.
18SMP069 Transmission of output from the international Halden Reactor Project CEZ, a.s.
18SMP447 Electricity supply for electromobility CEZ, a.s.
18SMP469 | Lease agreement CEZ, a.s.
19SMLO76 Non-disclosure Agreement dated 03/09/2019 CEZ, a. s.
19SMNO044 | Lease agreement CEZ, a. s.
Contract for technical assistance (preparation of selected
19SHEED documentation and provision of téZhn?cal assistance) CEZ a.s.
P14 | S o o ety | CEzas
19SMP227 Renewal of measurement of containment response CEZ, a. s.
1asMP28s | N e e oo o Pl |Gz
19SMP368 Contract for work (use of project reserves) CEZ, a.s.
Technical assistance in the implementation of a new type of fuel at the
19SMP423 Dukovany Nuclear Power Planp‘: P CEZ a.s.
- - - e soil =
19SMP426 VI?I:Lanir:)c\il ;r::t(;‘tgee:\t:i tfr:) waar:::’yms of the spill and coolability of the melt CEZ as.
19SMP445 Contract for technical assistance (data analysis) CEZ, a. s.
19SMP540 Contract for technical assistance (functional analyses of systems) CEZ, a. s.
19SMP542 g;:ir:;d for technical assistance (reconstitution of project starting CEZ a.s.
n
20SML201 g:k::::ag; :lc:: égggtd;;;c;zegg;% g/f 2c(t))::.’ractmg authorities in awarding CEZ a.s.
20SMNO043 Framework agreement for technical support of future operator CEZ, a.s.
20SMP035 Contract for work Upgrade 6M SCORPIO CEZ, a.s.
i - - Ren T
Z0sMPOsD | 1o o - conoopual cesion dooumentaton | CE22:5
20SMP121 Science and research (software tool development) CEZ, a.s.
20SMP130 Complementary experiments to the fuel assembly handling CEZ, a. s.
PP -A m f hnical f n
20SMP141 g::;\;zgar;lio:mﬁsess ent of the technical part of the tender CEZ a.s.
20SMP144 Conducting type qualification test CEZ, a.s.
20SMP153 Expansion of bike and motorcycle parking capacities CEZ, a. s.
20SMP215 | Software upgrade CEZ, a.s.
20SMP222 Analysis of the suppression of living organisms at Temelin NPP facility CEZ, a. s.
20SMP253 Technical assistance CEZ, a. s.
20SMP268 Provision of readiness CEZ, a. s.
20SMP300 g;é;:j\t: 2f the Catalogue of ageing machine equipment of the NPPs of CEZ a.s. @ *";‘
20SMP304 | Designwork Cez,as. [ g’f 0
Preparing supporting technical documentation for the intent of project e- Q/‘f’
20SMP309 7536 Reconstruction of extensions of outlets of 6 kV switchboard CEZ, a. s. ‘%. 6'3
rooms %020

%py 03/
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izrr:ﬁ:;t Description of the subject matter of the contract e Ol RelCant =t
UJV Rez EOmRaRy
i

20SMP348 \E)V;;;:ﬁigs)sg;fn_rz;r:z;:s N(;c;mputatlonal reports) for DBD (Design Basis GEZ a.s.
20SMP354 Technical assistance CEZ, a.s.
20SMP364 | Technical assistance CEZ, a. s.
20SMP371 Design work CEZ, a. s.
20SMP376 Conducting raw water evaporation tests CEZ, a.s.
20SMP385 | Provision of casks CEZ, a.s.
el o e [
20SMP420 Contract for the provision of technical assistance in years 2021-2025 CEZ, a.s.
20SMP449 Purchase contract (cements) CEZ, a. s.
20SMP469 glrl?l\év::g (ug)Acg ;()acsh(r;g::: lzic-)(r;gr?lc study for the Auxiliary Operations CEZ a.s.
20SMP474 NP-2020-108 - Verification of the function of the insulation container CEZ, a. s.
20SMP477 Veﬁﬂcgtion of the functionality of disassembled sealing material of CEZ a.s.

hermetic seals

Detailed design documentation for constructing a building to provide a
20SMP479 constant temperature field for turbine buildings of the Temelin NPP CEZ, a.s.

generating units

— = - " i Desian -
20SMP481 g;;;:ﬁ, gﬁ)sgyfn_raer::gisr:s N(;(;mputatlonal reports) for DBD (Design Basis CEZ a.s.
20SMP487 | Author supervision CEZ, a.s.
21NO00889 | Contract for verification of gauge calibration CEZ, a. s.
21NO00889 | Metrology work CEZ, a. s.
21NO04649 | NDT staff certification (UT, UTT method) CEZ, a. s.
21SMLO75 Agreement for the issue of warranties CEZ, a.s.
21SML091 Contract for the use of output of the project CEZ, a.s.
21SML162 Agreement for the transfer of premises CEZ, a.s.
21SML261 OFFSET AGREEMENT CEZ, a.s.
21SML262 CONTRACT FOR THE TRANSFER OF SHARE CEZ, a.s.
21SML263 CONTRACT FOR THE TRANSFER OF STOCKS CEZ, a. s.
21SMN047 Contract for the provision of services CEZ, a. s.
21SMP002 Preparation of supporting documents and data CEZ, a.s.
piowpony |21 NP2 221 dchanilarl of s o B o 7,
21SMP010 Pre-operation tests of the thermic stability of the bitumen concentrate CEZ, a. s.
21SMP015 | Exchange of cable CEZ, a. s.
21SMP017 Problem of replacement of inaccessible breakers on distribution boards CEZ, a.s.
21SMP029 Occupational health and safety plan - reduction of mercury emission CEZ, a. s.
21SMP044 Z:; :?;g pl)"::es?:t:t:ﬁfg gfsticlz’hn. Measures of vitally important CEZ a.s.
: T — & -

21SMP047 gzjgﬁ;nogimpAz?el-)s:::;:trsf;lr;epusablllty of the RK HCC (main CEZ a. s,
21SMP048 Conducting raw water evaporation tests CEZ, a.s.
21SMP052 Update of the data AXSYS.Engine project database CEZ, a.s.
21SMP053 agl\fdcg:,?\ <::a(:::a and evaluation of the chemical parameters of CEZ a.s.
21SMP058 | Architectural study CEZ, a.s.
21SMP064 Purchase of sealing cements CEZ, a. s.
21SMP066 Design operational modes of the Temelin NPP unit (dUP 463) CEZ, a.s.
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Contract i
number Description of the subject matter of the contract g:;]nea?‘f e el )
UJV Rez pany
21SMP069 Maintenance of the steam generator holder CEZ, a. s.
21SMP081 Behaviour of boric acid on strong alkaline anion exchange resin CEZ, a. s.
Support in preparing measures for increasing safety and Dukovany
21SMP08E | \pp and Temelin NPP CEZ a.s.
21SMP090 Analysis of pipeline pieces CEZ, a.s.
21SMP091 Drawing up operational diagrams of said sub-distribution boards CEZ, a.s.
21SMP096 Purchase of measuring instruments and spare parts CEZ, a.s.
21SMP097 Switchover of the low-pressure compressor CEZ, a.s
21SMP104 Drawing up of supporting techn. documentation JMA 8375 Modification CEZ a.s.
AAC DGS
21SMP105 Reconstitution of the unit design operational modes CEZ, a.s.
21SMP106 Trans.mlssm.n of output from the international Studsvik Cladding CEZ a.s.
Integrity Project
21SMP112 Leaks into the central oil system CEZ, a.s.
21SMP122 U.pdate of findings and trends in the .reductlon of contamination and CEZ a.s.
disposal of large volumes of contaminants
21SMP124 Replacement of electromotors CEZ, a.s.
21SMP126 Purchase of adhesive cements and primers CEZ, a. s.
21SMP128 8811 -.Extenswn of conduits in the reconstruction of road 11/152 CEZ a.s.
Hrotovice - Dukovany
Comparison of the calculation by the MOBY-DICK-1000 program with
21SMP129 operational data of Temelin NPP CEZ a.s.
Provision of participation, transmission and application of output from
FIDES OECD NEA (Framework for Irradiation Experiments
&SHIFIS2 Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Nuclear CEZ a.s.
Energy Agency)
21SMP133 Evaluation of computational programs ZL_NP_021 CEZ, a. s.
21SMP141 Analysis and evaluation of surface oxide layers CEZ, a. s.
21SMP151 Eva.\Iua'tlon of the condition of the sample of graphite gasket rings of the CEZ a.s.
main circulation pump
21SMP154 Drawing up of design documentation of the relaying of structures CEZ, a. s.
21SMP155 Drawing up_of design documentation for the preparation of land plots CEZ a.s.
for commerial use
21SMP159 AII-profes.smn .varlant. feasibility study of electrical supply of CEZ a.s.
construction site equipment
21SMP160 H793 - Corrections in circuits AZR (BECO) R6KV category Il CEZ, a. s.
21SMP161 Update of chapter 3.4.4 PrBZ Temelin NPP CEZ, a.s.
Drawing up of the Plan of decommissioning and estimation of costs of
21SMP163 decommissioning Dukovany Nuclear Power Plan CEZ a.s.
21SMP164 Safeguarding vitally important fire areas CEZ a.s.
21SMP167 Drawing up conceptual design documentation CEZ, a. s.
21SMP172 Implementation of complementary rubber resistance tests CEZ, a. s.
NP-2021-032 - Program of controlled ageing in the event of an
218MP174 | o tended outage of NPPs of CEZ, a. s. CEZ a.s.
21SMP176 Qr;?lyms of variants of increase in the storage capacity of spent nuclear CEZ a.s.
Change and supplement of the standard CEZ_ST_0093 and \
S L
.. 21SMP185 | o - tation CEZ, a.s. ‘qoﬂhY
21S_MP,1‘87' 1 Analysis of the current condition of markings CEZ, a. s. { g‘? u’"/)n '8
21SMP197 Assessment of the concept of secured power supply CEZ, a. s. { é— < ? g
21SMP199 | Drawing up representative sealing parameters CEZ, a.s. \"o; . < ‘.\‘.?
opeon
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Contract .
number Description of the subject matter of the contract (r;l:r:lneagf Eleicenttactng
UJV Rez R
Assessment of specific activity of radionuclides of interest in samples
21SMP200 taken from activated inner-reactor components of the reactor VVER CEZ, a. s.
440/230
NP-2021-033 - Qualification screening of the selection of equipment 3.
21SMP205 RB of Dukovany NPP CEZ, a. s.
21SMP207 Study of the exchange of steam generators CEZ, a.s.
Drawing up of annexes for the modemisation fund of the HEAT
21SMP213 program - facility for the energy utilisation of waste of the Mélnik Power CEZ, a.s.
plant
21SMP219 NP-2021-011 - Qualification tests of the Low-voltage electromotor CEZ, a.s.
21SMP220 Analysis of pipeline pieces CEZ, a. s.
NP-2021-037 - Optimisation of CCHO operation and effluent in
iorzat eighteen month cycles of Temelin NPP CEZ a.s.
21SMP224 Equivalents of distribution board instrumentation CEZ, a.s.
21SMP233 Purchase of soles of tow anchors CEZ, a.s.
21SMP238 Comparison of operational parameters of secondary circuits CEZ, a.s.
21SMP240 Validation of c.omputatlonal programs for the assessment of the safety CEZ a.s.
of nuclear equipment
21SMP242 Contract for the provision of services CEZ, a.s.
21SMP245 Analysis and evaluation of surface oxide layers on heat pipes of the CEZ a.s.
steam generator
218SMP247 Purchase of cleaning agent CEZ, a.s.
21SMP249 | Purchase of sealing CEZ, a.s.
21SMP256 NP-2021-047 - Extension of the qualified lifespan of the cable KPOSG CEZ, a.s.
Support in the transition to the 18-month campaign of Temelin Nuclear
ZISHIPE62 Power Plant — safety evaluation CEZ a.s.
Conceptual design documentation of distribution boards, which are not
218MP265 | 4 o subject of the E855 project CEZ a.s.
21SMP266 Selgctlwty - 8612 - Replacement of type F250M06 motors for an CEZ a.s.
equivalent
21SMP268 H387 - Increase of the resistance of system TX10,20,30 innovation of CEZ a.s.
cooling of pumps and motor
Revision and supplement of the document of Design and operational
21SMP269 | 13 des of the Temelin unit (dUP 463) - unit statuses CE2 s
21SMP271 JMA 8750 - SKRE-ED - exchange of instrumentation CEZ, a. s.
21SMP272 Assessment of the extension of equipment maintenance programmes CEZ, a. s.
21SMP273 TPo 8556 - Exchange of protection of the unit of Dukovany NPP CEZ, a.s.
Intent of the project for “8543 - Reconstruction of high-pressure
2ASNIEZIA compressor station of the first main generating unit CEZ, a.s.
21SMP275 TPo 6174 - Cask digitisation CEZ, a. s.
21SMP281 Dravx_nng up of the Work procedure of machine maintenance and CEZ a.s.
repairs
21SMP298 Comprehensive verification of the thermic stability of the concentrate CEZ, a.s.
21SMP299 Radiochemical analysis of the radioactive sample CEZ, a. s.
21SMP301 Drawing up of the 3D model of scanned areas/rooms for 8509 project CEZ, a. s.
NP-2021-036 - Evaluation of the effect of the eighteen month cycles for
Sl e the lifespan of VCR and TNR of the Temelin NPP CEZ a.s. /f"_“\'_
21SMP304 Provision of support in the activities of the expert team CEZ, a.s. / o“‘ '
- . $ ) <
- f f
21SMP306 EDl:! 7323. §afe separation of unit transformers from the wall of the CEZ a.s. /V/;O o
turbine building P 4 .
21SMP307 | Selectivity for technical change CEz.as. \% Wy |3
21SMP309 Purchase of sealing cements CEZ, a.s. \\C'o,mg\\,“
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UJV Rez Lompany
21SMP311 JMA H866-Additional sockets for Temelin NPP CEZ, a. s.
21SMP314 G789 - Modemisation of in-house inf. system Prospectus CEZ, a. s.
21SMP315 8695 - Provision of a system of inspection of fuel hermeticity CEZ, a. s.
21SMP323 Contract for the provision of services CEZ,a.s
21SMP327 Documentation of fire-resistant bushings CEZ, a.s.
21SMP328 | Design documentation CEZ, a.s.
21SMP340 G073 - Reconstruction of DG control systems CEZ, a.s.
21SMP349 Assessment of equivalents of replacement of electromotors CEZ, a.s.
21SMP351 isrggﬁt- Emergency source of refrigerant - initial project and project SEZ a.s.
21SMP355 Ilezﬁl'il'k- drawing up of techn. annexes to the request for support - CEZ a.s.
21SMP357 | Analysis of studs CEZ, a. s.
21SMP358 Simulation of the long-term operation of instrument transformer CEZ, a.s.
21SMP361 Purchase of sealing cements CEZ, a.s.
21SMP365 ?;—3352;;)79 - Qualification analysis of Rosemount pressure SEZ a.s.
21SMP367 Work related to Stent inspection CEZ, a.s.
21SMP369 3D model of room B527/1 Volume compensator box CEZ, a.s.
21SMP383 S:::;,ﬁt:;i p;:;—:;:;at:zr; tests of the thermic stability of the bitumen CEZ a.s.

Revision of the database of selectivity and setting of protection at 0.4
21SMFSEe kV outlets at Temelin NPP Y 9o CEZ,a.s.
FISNRSs0 benns o | OEZ.es
21SMP391 Professional assistance for JMA 8619 - Reconstruction of UR 0.4 kV CEZ, a. s.
21SMP407 H374 Creation of covered stands for alternative DG and cable cars CEZ, a. s.
21SMP415 NP-2021-076 - Extension of the qualified lifespan of VITON sealing CEZ, a.s.
21SMP422 Complementary analyses for operational events CEZ, a. s.
21SMP423 Analyses for estimated frequency of tornados ZL NP 103 CEZ, a. s.
21SMP424 Drawing up of 3D model of rooms A52771, A527/2 and B527/2 CEZ, a.s.
21SMP425 Validation of model ATF QUENCH ATF OECD NEA ZL NP 104 CEZ, a.s.
21SMP426 S;Zf:;?et?;ig; .ngl\_fv-mgt_j:; for the needs of the calculations of PS CEZ a.s.
21SMP433 Change in the solution in protected emergency route CEZ, a. s.
21SMP438 Changes of CFD models of Temelin NPP CEZ a.s.
21SMP439 Extended validation of computational tools - ZL 101 CEZ, a.s.
21SMP440 Perfection of CFD of computational methods - ZL. 099 CEZ, a. s.
21SMP443 3D scanning of selected compartments/spaces of Temelin NPP CEZ, a. s.
21SMP445 Equivalents of replacement of electromotors CEZ, a.s.
21SMP446 Drawing up of the standpoint of an energy expert CEZ, a. s.
R e A Al [
21SMP464 Evaluation of reliability_ ZL NP_080 CEZ, a.s. /—}
o SMP s Drawing up of documentation of the Intent of t'he'prqject for the Bz 2R oy
construction of a steam-gas sources at the Mélnik site ’ & 9 P
21SMP47i Drawing up of the Solution Study CEZ a.s. l 8 <o F ) 04
= - — = - - o 2
SRR b R DL
S THEANES
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number Description of the subject matter of the contract y:r?eazf tieicpniiacling
UJV Rez pany
Engineering assessment of the implementation of the photvolatic plant
21SMPATT | 4t the Teme NPP site CEZ a.s.
Provision of advice, consulting activity and professional assistance -
21SMP479 fuel cask TVSA-T CEZ, a. s.
21SMP482 Basic principles for the reconstruction of el. LV distributors CEZ, a. s.
Drawing up of a 3D model of technology in selected rooms of HVB
21SMP489 Dukovany NPP CEZ, a.s.
5SML009 Contract for work (maintenance of SCORPIO software programs) CEZ, a.s.
Framework agreement for the provision of technical support -
16SMP467 preparation of the project NJZ EDU (New nuclear source of Dukovany | Elektrarna Dukovany Il,a.s.
Nuclear Power Plant)
19SMP307 NJZEDU_2018_04 Technical assistance to obtain a zoning decision Elektrarna Dukovany i, a. s.
NJZEDU - Preparation and completion of supporting documents to the
application for the issue of a zoning decision on the siting of the X
20SMP006 structure “Drainage of rainwater from the NJZ EDU by the Lipfiansky Elektramna Dukovany l, a. s.
brook incl. its retention”
N DU- i I f the inqui
20SMP149 JZ EDU Cf)mpletlon and assessment of selected parts of the inquiry Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a. s,
documentation
20SMP485 ZL NJZ EDU_2020_03 Elektrarna Dukovany |1, a. s.
21SMP248 Update of the concept of the disposal of RAW from NJZ Elektrarna Dukovany I, a. s.
21SMP277 z:oa;lll)ltles for the investor - administration rooms and car park stage | Elektrama Dukovany Il a. s.
21SMP305 ZL NJZEDU_2021_03 LPP Elektrarna Dukovany Il a. s.
21SMP332 NJZ EDU 2021_05 Inspection of inquiry documentation Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a. s.
All-profession draft NCSJ and draft change of the route of discharge ,
21SMP490 rows of NJZ EDU Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a. s.
Framework agreement for the provision of technical support -
16SMP468 preparation of the project NJZ ETE (New nuclear source of Temelin Elektrarna Temelin Il, a. s.
Nuclear Power Plant)
19SMP309 NJZ ETE - DUR, NJZETE-2018-05 Elektrarna Temelin lI, a. s.
Qualification study for the preparation of the feasibility study SMR in i ,
21SMP055 the Czech Republic Elektrarna Temelin ll, a. s.
21SMP483 ZL NJZETE_2021_03 Elektrarna Temelin I, a. s.
21SMP484 ZL NJZETE_2021_02 Elektrarna Temelin ll, a. s.
21SMP147 Hot-water line EGT-Praha, documentation for reinforcement of BS Energotrans, a.s.
embedment
21SMP469 EGT0474 - Drawing up ZD documentation for project PPC1 EGT - for Energotrans, a.s.
Energotrans
21SMP0O75 Selectivity G804 - Retrofitting of system ZAT DV - Temelin NPP MARTIA a.s.
21SMP162 Selectivity G874 - PNC 3877 Completion of outlet for tightener 0BJES8 | MARTIA a.s.
21SMP381 Selectivity 8642-Provision of 24h telecom. for control of the energ. MARTIA a.s.
system
21SMP410 Selectivity H114 - System power supply MARTIA a.s.
20SML115 Contract for the use of output 0SC, a.s.
21SMN265 Collection of data for the simulator 0SC, a.s.
16SMLO08 Confidentiality Agreement SKODA PRAHA a.s.
HPR1000 EUR CERTIFICATION CONSULTANCY SERVICES
16SMP452 CONTRACT SKODA PRAHA a.s. P
20SML128 | NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT - SKODAPRAHAas. o™ ©
20SML164 Lease agreement for non-residential premises incl. amendments SKODA PRAHA a.s. 3’ N"’/\{,7 e
Agreement for personal data processing between UJV ReZ, a. s. and 3 P Q*f -
20SML241 SKODA PRAHA a.s. = SKODA PRAHA a.s. ‘;\-\ {J% g
-
&
""’71@9})
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Contract .
number Description of the subject matter of the contract (l;l()ar:\eaﬂf et
UJV Rez REny
20SMNO032 Contract for the provision of services incl. amendments SKODA PRAHA a.s.
f l i fi i Sk Prah
21SMLO41 g\%rizr:ent or the lease of premises used for business Skoda Praha, SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SML042 CONTRACT FOR THE LEASE OF SPACE SO 250 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
Agreement on the assignment of the contract for work (UJV - Kukleny
21SML107 Machine Shop) SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SML257 Non-disclosure Agreement - Unipetrol SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMNO048 Reconstruction structure 250 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMN082 Exchange of the cyclotron at the PET Centre Prague SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMN156 Consultancy and Supervisory Services Contract SKODA PRAHA a.s.
Order for the project “Change and supplement of the standard
21SHINiS CEZ_ST_0093 and documentation” SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMN246 Feasibility study of the exchan?e of PG Dukovany NPP 1-4 for “8908 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
exchange of steam generators
21SMN410 Inspection trip in Allbruck SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMP018 CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMP116 Contract for energy supply for SO 250 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMP118 Contract for energy supply - SP SO 424 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMP177 Exchange of the cyclotron at the PET Centre Prague-drawing up of SKODA PRAHA a.s.
documentation
21SMP276 Documentation PBR (fire safety solutions), structure 20210804-101/0, SKODA PRAHA a.s.
Skoda Praha
21SMP292 Dukovany NPP 8950_PDPS el + SKR (management control system) SKODA PRAHA a.s.
21SMP473 Drawing up of documentation - Unipetrol RPA, Heating Plant T600 SKODA PRAHA a.s.
19SMLOG6 zg :; establishment and operation of joint workplace for the trapping of SKO-ENERGO, s.1.0.
16SMN310 Contract for the provision of electronic communication services Telco Pro Services, a. s.
15SMP493 Contract for advisory services - marketing and PR activities grsr’:(a)v sa;:l(i)kované mechaniky
Framework agreement - technical studies, analyses, PD, consultancy Ustav aplikované mechaniky
17SMLO13 . L
and advisory activities Brno, s.r.o.
Framework agreement for conducting technical studies, design work Ustav aplikované mechaniky
17SML026 =
and consultancy activities Bmo, s.r.o.
18SMP440 Contract for services Ustav aplikované mechaniky
Brno, s.r.o.
19SMP444 ORD - Evaluation of HSS in terms of corrosive mechanical properties grsr:zvsafl(l)kovane mechaniky
20SMNO64 6729 - Use of the design reserves of the Dukovany NPP II units incl. Ustav aplikované mechaniky
amendment Brno, s.r.o.
18SML027 Contract for credit framework Vyzkymny a zkusebni ustav
. Plzei s.r.o.
20SML277 VZU - Contract for the provision of human resource services 2021 and Vyzkymny a zkugebni Gstav
following years Plzen s.r.o.
20SMN165 Proyision and implementing Sponge Jet technology for THS-15 Vszymny a zkugebni stav
equipment Plzei s.r.o.
20SMN278 Analysis of metallurgical material Vkavu mny a zkuSebni ustav
Plzei s.r.o.
20SMN431 Maintenance of structure Tylova 46, Plzef \F{}lzzekrv:"sn% a zkuSebni dstav
20SMP340 .| Agreement for the lease of premises used for business \Fflyzzek;?% a zkuebni dstav
21NO00300 | Gauge calibration / o @ \ Vyzkumny a zkuSebni ustav
? oW .\ Plzen s.r.o.
221NO00383. | Gauge calibration { 8 :O,{ S Vyzkvumny a zku$ebni ustav
: et Q& Lo, ~i{|Plzef s.r.o.
2 ey oY
Un. \.\0‘_./
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%grr]r::)aecrt Description of the subject matter of the contract Name of the contracting
UJV Rez company
21NO00644 | Spray of 10 pc of rollers \F{?lzzekﬁursnpsé .a zkusebni ustav
21N0O00843 | Gauge calibration gﬂ:?% .a zkusebni ustav
21NO01327 | Gauge calibration \F{?/Zz;:;n% .a zku$ebni dstav
21NO01570 | Gauge calibration \P/?/zz;(:?% ‘a zkusebni ustav
21NO01743 | Gauge calibration \Igr’zzekr‘:?:z.a zkusebni astav
21NO01764 | Gauge calibration \Pllyzzek;;n% .a zkusebni Ustav
21NO01996 | Gauge calibration XIVZZ:#:T:);a zkusebni ustav
21N002136 | Gauge calibration \Pllyzzekr‘:l:?_g,a zkusebni astav
21N002334 | Gauge calibration \F{?/Zik#?% 'a zkusebni ustav
21NO02676 | Gauge calibration \Fflyzz:::l% .a zkusebni stav
21NO03259 | Gauge calibration \Pflyzzek#':psé .a zkusebni Gstav
21NO03428 | Spray of rollers \Fflyzzekrt:r:rnxé .a zkusebni dstav
21NO03493 | Prestressing wires - tensile test \P/I)’:zzekr'??:g.a zku$ebni Ustav
21N003556 | Gauge calibration \I;?/Zzekr:lr:% _a zkusebni ustav
21NO03736 | Comparative tensile tests \F{?/ZZ(:#TS“:\):)G zkuebni Gstav
21NO03752 Adjustment of the temperature field of the supporting fields of ET Vyzk}]mny a zkudebni ustav
elements Plzen s.r.o.
21NO04338 | Gauge calibration \';?/Zik:;n?)é .a zkusebni dstav
21NO04569 | Tensile tests \;?/Zzek:r;% .a zkusebni ustav
21N0O04570 | Gauge calibration \P/Iyzzek#r:-rné .a zkusebni ustav
21NO04620 | Gauge calibration \Fflyzz;(:?% 'a zkusebni astav
21NO05896 | Gauge calibration \F{Iyzz:#rsn?s; .a zku$ebni ustav
21NO06429 | Tensile tests \P/Iyzzek#;np)é .a zku$ebni ustav
21NO06970 | Gauge calibration \Pllyzzek#;n% ‘a zkusebni dstav
21NO07140 | Tensile tests \Pllyzzek:?% .a zkusebni ustav
21NO07241 | Gauge calibration X?/zzk:?% .a zkusebni ustav
21SMN275 | Sponsorship agreement \I!Iyzzekr":j:]?)c’)a zkudebni gstav
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(Translation of a report originally issued in Czech - see Note 2 to the financial statements.)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of UJV ReZ, a. s.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of UJV Re?, a. s. (the Company) prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details of the
Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and Auditing Standards of the Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended
by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Intormation

in compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. The Board
of Directors is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection with our audit
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether
the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law
or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms
of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality,
i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgments made on the basis

of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:
« The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is,
in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and
e The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company
obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 — Nove Mesto, has been
incorporated in the C ial Register ini: by the Municipal Court in Prague,

Section C, entry no. 88504, under Identification No. 26704153.
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procedures we have performed on {he other information obtained, we have not identified any material
misstatement.

Responsibilities of the Company’s Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic and for such internal
control as the Board of Directers determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to traud or error,

in preparing the financiat siatements, the Board of Directors is responsivle for assessing the Company's
abilily to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of gssurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detecl a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consigered material if, ingividually or in the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess thie risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due lo
fraud of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
deteciing a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internai contral.

e Obtain an understanding of internal conirel televanl to the sudil in order to design audit
procedures that are apprepriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contiol.

+ Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significani doubt on the Company's ability To continue
as a going coricern. If we conciude thal & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the reiated disciosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate. io modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up te the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events of conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial siatements. Including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and evenis in'a manner that achieves fair preseniation.

A membest firn of Emst & Young Groeal Lirissd

Emst § YOIng Audt, 6.2.0, ¥ Is segistered offios & Na Flossnct 211615, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mestn
K25 heen ICOMPOrAted i e CoMMISTS Register admiiisianed by the Murkins| Coartin Pragu

Section . antny ne 38504 vnier Ieni®oaton No. 26704153
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UJV Rez, a. s., Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

[in TCZK]
Current year Prior year
2020
Gross Allowances Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS 4,747,410 -1,624,902 3,122,508 3,462,347
STOCK SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE - - - -
FIXED ASSETS 3,589,814 -1,555,877 2,033,937 2,217,720
Intangible fixed assets 178,396 -155,421 22,975 24,487
Development - - - -
Valuable rights 177,334 -155,421 21,913 23,455
Software 176,468 -155,216 21,252 22,777
Other valuable rights 866 -205 661 678
Goodwill - - - -
Other intangible fixed assets - - - -
Advances granted for intangible fixed assets and

intangible fixed assets in progress 1,062 - 1,062 1,032
Advances granted for intangible fixed assets - - - -
Intangible fixed assets in progress 1,062 - 1,062 1,032
Tangible fixed assets 2,543,497 -1,399,462 1,144,035 1,052,025
Land and structures 1,122,134 -545,287 576,847 554,188
Land 15,647 - 15,647 15,666
Structures 1,106,488 -545,287 561,201 538,522
Movable assets and sets of movable assets 1,331,261 -857,832 473,429 449,958
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property -3,657 3,657 - -
Other tangible fixed assets 31 - 31 31
Perennial crops - - - -
Livestock - - - -
Miscellaneous tangible fixed assets 31 - 31 31
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets and

tangible fixed ts in progress 93,728 - 93,728 47,848
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets 1,344 - 1,344 10,000
Tangible fixed assets in progress 92,384 - 92,384 37,848
Long-term investments 867,921 -994 866,927 1,141,208
Interests — controlled or controlling entity 831,539 - 831,539 1,132,111
Loans and borrowings — controlled or controlling entity 34,786 - 34,786 7,786
Interests — significant influence - - - -
Loans and borrowings - significant influence - - - -
Other long-term securities and interests 1,311 -994 317 1,311
Loans and borrowings - other - - - -
Other long-term investments 285 - 285 -
Miscellaneous long-term investments 285 - 285 -

Advances granted for long-term investments
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[in TCZK]
I Current year Prior year
2020
Gross Allowances Net Net
CURRENT ASSETS 1,136,123 -69,025 1,067,097 1,229,045
Inventories 82,526 -1,406 81,120 116,911
Materials 13,716 - 13,716 15,416
Work in progress and semi-finished production 68,809 -1,406 67,403 101,495
Finished products and goods - - - -
Finished products - - - -
Goods - - - -
Livestock - - - -
Advances granted for inventories - - - -
Receivables 655,842 -67,619 588,223 585,524
Long-term receivables 38,134 - 38,134 51,392
Trade receivables 1,198 - 1,198 1,611
Receivables — controlled or controlling entity - - - -
Receivables — significant influence - - - -
Deferred tax asset 33,715 - 33,715 45,966
Other receivables 3,221 - 3,221 3,815
Receivables from partners - - - -
Long-term advances granted 32 - 32 449
Unbilled revenue - - - -
Miscellaneous receivables 3,189 - 3,189 3,366
Short-term receivables 617,708 -67,619 550,089 534,132
Trade receivables 569,479 -64,865 504,614 500,967
Receivables — controlled or controlling entity - - - -
Receivables — significant influence - - - -
Other receivables 48,229 -2,754 45,475 33,165
Receivables from partners - - - -
Social security and health insurance - - - -
Due from government - tax receivables 20,102 - 20,102 11,509
Short-term advances granted 4,051 - 4,051 3,787
Unbilled revenue 18,750 - 18,750 12,823
Miscellaneous receivables 5,326 -2,754 2,572 5,046
Short-term financial assets - - - -
Interests - controlled or controlling entity - - - -
Other short-term financial assets - - - -
Cash 397,755 - 397,755 526,610
Cash in hand 2,857 - 2,857 3,511
Cash at bank 394,898 - 394,898 523,099
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 21,474 - 21,474 15,582
Prepaid expenses 21,474 e 21,474 15,582
Prepaid" expensés (specific-purpose expenses) - / d‘\y -| @ - -
| Accrued income - 9 2 - -
ptig® fo, 2
3 Wy &
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UJV Rez, a. s., Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021

fin TCZK]

Current year

Prior year
2020

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

3,122,508

3,462,347

EQUITY

2,123,497

2,065,171

Esic capital

524,139

524,139

Registered capital

524,139

524,139

Own ownership interests (-)

Changes in basic capital

Share premium and revaluation reserve

112,516

112,516

Share premium

Capital funds

112,516

112,516

Other capital funds

85,149

85,149

Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities (+/-)

Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporate transformation (+/-)

Differences arising on corporate transformation (+/-)

27,367

27,367

Differences arising between balance sheet date and
transformation date (+/-)

Reserves from profit

367,896

375,711

Other reserves

104,828

104,828

Statutory and other reserves

263,068

270,883

Profit (loss) brought forward (+/-)

1,060,617

751,027

Retained earnings

1,060,617

751,027

Other profit (loss) brought forward (+/-)

Profit (loss) for the year (+/-)

58,329 |

301,778

Approved decision on advances for profit
distribution (-)

PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

978,414 |

1,367,879

Provisions

562,354

578,830

Provision for pensions and similar obligations

Provision for corporate income tax

Provisions recognized under special legislation

153,261

143,436

Other provisions

409,093

435,394

Liabilities

416,060

789,049

Long-term liabilities

Bonds payable

Convertible bonds

QOther bonds

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Long-term advances received

Trade payables

Long-term notes payable

Liabilities — controiled or controlling entity

Liabilities — significant influence

Deferred tax liability

Other liabilities

Liabilities to partners

Unbilled deliveries

Miscellaneous liabilities
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[in TCZK]

Current year Prior year

2020

Current liabilities 416,060 789,049
Bonds payable - -
Convertible bonds - -
Other bonds - -
Amounts owed to credit institutions - -
Short-term advances received 7,963 7,963
Trade payables 197,160 135,420
Short-term notes payable - -
Liabilities — controlled or controlling entity - 1,910
Liabilities — significant influence - -
Other liabilities 210,937 643,756
Liabilities to partners - 404,000
Short-term borrowings - -
Liabilities to employees 31,483 28,461
Liabilities arising from social security and health
insurance 16,661 16,434
Due to government — taxes and subsidies 46,704 71,875
Unbilled deliveries 110,385 121,898
Miscellaneous liabilities 5,703 1,088
Accruals and deferred income 20,596 29,297
Accruals - -
Deferred income 20,596 29,297
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UJV ReZ, a. s., Income Statement as at 31 December 2021

INCOME STATEMENT

[in TCZK]
Current year Prior year
2020
Revenue from sale of finished products and services 1,480,100 1,352,446
Revenue from sale of goods - -
Production-related consumption 642,042 548,634
Cost of goods sold - -
Consumption of material and energy 110,556 90,221
Services 531,486 458,413
Change in inventory produced internally (+/-) 33,995 ] -14,170
Own work capitalized (-) -12,875 l -8,120
Personnel expenses 727,604 682,966
Wages and salaries 534,225 502,781
Social security and health insurance costs and other costs 193,379 180,185
Social security and health insurance costs 176,471 165,579
Other costs 16,908 14,606
Value adjustments in respect of operating activities 93,227 87,187
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets 103,191 100,570
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets -
permanent 103,191 100,570
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets -
temporary - -
Value adjustments in respect of inventory 97 -3,824
Value adjustments in respect of receivables -10,061 -9,559
Other operating income 92,435 93,771
Income from sale of fixed assets 982 882
Income from sale of materials 975 903
Miscellaneous operating income 90,478 91,986
Other operating expenses 1,088 63,592
Net book value of fixed assets sold 2,328 538
Net book value of materials sold 851 766
Taxes and charges relating to operations 2,250 1,860
Provisions relating to operations and prepaid expenses (specific-
purpose expenses) -16,472 49,042
Miscellaneous operating expenses 12,130 11,386
Profit or loss on operating activities (+/-) 87.454 86,128
Income from long-term investments - interests - 7 \‘\{ -0
Income from interests in subsidiaries or parents - [_0‘\ -

Other invcome. from interests
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UJV Rez, a. s., Income Statement as at 31 December 2021

[in TCZK]
Current year Prior year
2020
Cost of interests sold S -
Income from other long-term investments - 252,235
Income from other long-term investments - subsidiaries or parents - 252,235
Other income from other long-term investments - -
Expenses relating to other long-term investments - 1 7,148
Interest receivable and similar income 832 2,805
Interest receivable and similar income - subsidiaries or parents 832 339
Other interest receivable and similar income - 2,466
Value adjustments and provisions relating to financial activities ] 994 -973
Interest payable and similar expenses 255 244
Interest payable and similar expenses - subsidiaries or parents - -
Other interest payable and similar expenses 255 244
Other finance income | 3,476 ] 13,918
Other finance cost | 12,012 I 25,433
Profit or loss on financial activities (+/-) ‘ -8,953 ! 237,106
Profit or loss before taxation (+/-) [ 78,501 | 323,234
Income tax 20,172 21,456
Income tax due 7,921 17,628
Income tax deferred (+/-) 12,251 3,828
Profit or loss after taxation (4/-) | 58,329 I 301,778
Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-) I - | -
Profit or loss for the year (+/-) 58,329 301,778
Net turnover 1,576,843 1,715,175
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UJV Rez, a. s., Cashlow as at 31 December 2021

CASHFLOW

[in TCZK]
Current year Prior year
2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-) 78,501 ] 323,234
Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in
operating activities 80,488 -103,630
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 103,313 100,814
Change in allowances -8,970 -14,356
Change in provisions -16,476 49,034
Foreign exchange differences 1,852 8,870
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,346 -245,431
Interest expense and interest income -577 -2,561
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss,
dividends received) - -
Net cash from operating activities before taxation, changes in
working capital and extraordinary items 158,990 219,604
Change in non-cash components of working capital 55,854 -19,126
Change in inventory 35,695 -21,964
Change in trade receivables 4,184 -29,756
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled
revenue 9,128 13,953
Change in trade payables 54,821 9,229
Change in other payables, and in accruals and deferred income -47,974 9,412
Net cash from operating activities before taxation, interest paid and
extraordinary items 214,844 200,478
Interest paid -255 -244
Income Tax paid -23,331 -17,028
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 191,258 183,206
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets 84,081 -972,173
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 885 253,117
Loans granted - -
Interest received 832 2,805
Dividends received - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 85,798 ] -716,251
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in long-term liabilities, and long-term and short-term loans -405,910 | 402,091
Effect of other changes in equity on cash - -
Profit shares paid - -
Effect of other changes in own capital on cash -1 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities -405,911 [ 402,091
Net increase (decrease) in cash -128,855 o -130,954
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 526,610 e 64
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 397,755 526,6
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UJV Rez, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT as at 31
December 2021
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UJV Res, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

1) Description of Company

UJV Rez, a. s. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) is a joint-stock company, which was
established on 31 December 1992 and has its registered office at Hlavni 130, Rez, 250 68 Husinec,
Czech Republic, identification number 46356088. Its main activities are technical-engineering and
all-professional project services for nuclear energy, research and services for the disposal of
radioactive waste, radiation chemistry and the production of radio-pharmaceuticals.

Persons participating in the registered capital

CEZ, 8. Sueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt n b e et b e ee b 52.46%
Slovenské elektrarne, a. s., Slovak Republic...........cccccccceiiiiiiis 27.77%
SKODA JS . S.oveeeeeeeeeee ettt es ettt 17.39%
Husinec Municipality...........ccoccviviiiiiiinei e 2.38%

CEZ, a. s. is the parent company of the Company.

The Company is part of the consolidation unit of the parent company and financial statement of UJV
ReZ is prepared as separately. The consolidated financial statement is prepared by the parent
company CEZ, a. s., where it is also filed and will be published in the public register.

The Company is also the parent company of the UJV Group. In accordance with Czech accounting
regulations, the Company has an exception to prepare the consolidated financial statement in
accordance with Czech regulations.

Members of statutory, management, control and administrative bodies as of 31 December 2021:

Board of Directo_rs

Chairman: ‘Ing. Daniel Jificka

Member: Ing. Tomas Novotny

Member: Ing. Patrik Spatzal, MBA

Member: Ing. Vladimir Poklop

Member: Ing. Jan Stancl

ﬁﬁervisory Board r . =
Chairman: - Ing. Bohdan Zronek

Vice Chairman Ing. Ladislav Stépanek

Member JUDr. Marek Slégl

Member JUDr. Michaela Chaloupkova, MBA
Member Ing. Pavel Janik

Member ing. Tomas Pleska¢, MBA

Member Ing. Vilém Hanzal, Ph.D.

Member Ing. Pavel Kral, Ph.D.

Member Ing. Milo$ Kytka

As of 3 January 2021, Ing. Vladimir Poklop was elected a member of Board of Directors. Ing. Tomas
Pleskaé¢ was elected a new member of the Supervisory Board by the General Meeting in 2021 (as
of 1st July 2021), replacing Ing. Martin Jasek, M.A. in the Supervisory Board (to 30 June 2021).
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UJV Rez, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

2) Basic principles for the preparation of the financial
statement

The attached financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act and its
implementing regulations as amended for 2020 and 2021.

The financial statement has been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue to
operate as an enterprise of indefinite duration.

3) General accounting principles, accounting methods and
deviations from these methods

The valuation methods used by the Company in preparing the financial statement for 2020 and 2021
are as follows:

1. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition cost, which include the purchase price, and other
acquisition-related costs.

Intangible fixed assets in the value from 20 TCZK to 60 TCZK are depreciated in 2020 and in the
value from 40 TCZK to 80 TCZK is depreciated to costs in 2021 based on the expected useful life of
the respective asset in the length of 2 years.

Intangible fixed assets in the value over 60 TCZK are depreciated in 2020 and in the over 80 TCZK
are depreciated in 2021 based on the expected useful life of the respective asset in the length of 5
years or according to a contract.

Depreciations
Depreciations are calculated on the basis of the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life. The
estimated useful life is determined as follows:

Number of years (from-to)

Software 2-5
Other valuable rights Under contract

2. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition cost, which include the acquisition price, transport
costs, customs duties and other acquisition-related costs.

Tangible fixed assets produced in the Company are valued at its own costs which include direct
material costs, personnel costs, services and operating overheads. Interest and other financial
expenses relating to the acquisition shall be accounted to the costs on the basis of a decision of the

Company.
Tangible fixed assets in value from 20 to 40 TCZK in 2020 and in value from 40 to 80 TCZK in 2021
‘are depreciated over their estimated useful life of 2 years. o‘\\y e
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UJV Rez, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

Tangible fixed assets over 40 TCZK in 2020 and 80 TCZK in 2021 are depreciated over the estimated
useful life.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at the reproduction acquisition price and
accounted for in favour of the account of other capital funds. The reproduction acquisition cost of
these assets was determined at the level of the purchase price. In the case of gifts from abroad, the
reproduction acquisition cost is set at the level of the customs value; it is a statistical value on a
single statistical declaration for non-EU countries.

Valuation of tangible fixed assets is reduced by received subsidies.
The costs of technical improvement of tangible fixed assets increase their acquisition cost. Repairs
and maintenance are accounted to costs.

The valuation difference on acquired assets represents the difference between the valuation of the
Company acquired by the contribution and the total valuation of individual components of the assets

in accounting reduced by the assumed payables.

Depreciations
Depreciations are calculated on the basis of the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life. The
estimated useful life is determined as follows:

Number of years (from-to) __

Buildings 25 -50
Machines, apparatus and installations 2-12
Means of transport 6-8
Inventory 2-17
Valuation difference on acquired assets 15

3. Financial assets

Long-term investments consist mainly of ownership interests and available-for-sale securities and
shares.

Available-for-sale securities and shares are securities and shares, which are a trading security,
a held-to-maturity security or an ownership interest.

Shares and securities are valued at acquisition prices, which include the acquisition price and direct
acquisition-related costs, such as fees and commissions to brokers and exchanges.

If there is a decrease in the book value of a long-term financial asset that is not revalued at the end
of the balance sheet date, the difference is treated as a temporary decrease in value and is

recognized as an adjustment.

4. Cash

Cash consists of securities, money in cash and in bank accounts.

46



UJV Rez, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

5. Inventories

Purchased inventories are valued at acquisition prices using the weighted arithmetic mean method.
The purchase cost of inventories includes the costs of their acquisition, including acquisition-related
costs (transportation costs, customs duties, commissions, etc.).

The work in progress is valued at actual direct costs. Direct costs include direct material costs,
services, personal costs and operational overheads. Operating overheads include actual overheads
and are allocated based on a calculation from the previous year's actual costs.

6. Receivables

Receivables are valued at the nominal value. Doubtful receivables are written down to their realizable
value through adjustments chargeable to costs.

7. Derivatives

Derivatives are initially valued at acquisition prices. In the attached balance sheet, derivatives are
reported as part of other short-term/long-term receivables respectively payables.

Derivatives are divided into trading derivatives and hedging derivatives. Hedging derivatives are
entered into for the purpose of hedging the real value or for the purpose of hedging cash flows. In
order for a derivative to be classified as a hedging, changes in real value or changes in cash flows
arising from hedging derivatives must fully or partially offset changes in the real value of the hedged
item or changes in cash flows arising from the hedged item and the Company must document and
demonstrate the existence of a hedging relationship and effectiveness of hedging. In other cases,

they are trading derivatives.

Derivatives are revalued to real value at the balance sheet date. Changes in the real values of
derivatives held for trading are recognized in financial expenses, revenues respectively.

8. Equity

The registered capital of the Company is reported in the amount registered in the public register of
the municipal court. Other capital funds consist of monetary or non-monetary deposits in excess of
the value of the registered capital, donations to fixed assets, etc.

The Company created a reserve fund. The resources thus created can only be used to cover losses.

According to the articles of association, the Company also creates a research and development fund
and an environmental damage fund. The funds are created on the basis of a decision of the General
Meeting from the Company's profit. Internal research projects approved by the Company's Board of
Directors are financed from the research and development fund with the prior consent of the
Supervisory Board. It is planned to finance potential liabilities in excess of reserves from the
environmental damage fund after approval by the Company’s Board of Directors with the prior

consent of the Supervisory Board.
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9. External resources

The Company creates statutory reserves in the meaning of the Act on Reserves and reserves for
losses and risks in cases where it is possible to determine the title, amount, and date of performance
in compliance with the material and temporal context with a high degree of probability.

Long-term and short-term payables are reported at nominal values.

Long-term and short-term payables to credit institutions are reported at nominal values.
The part of long-term payables to credit institutions that is due within one year from the balance
sheet date is also considered short-term payables to credit institutions.

10. Leasing

The Company has leased passenger cars in the form of financial and operating leasing. The
Company accounts for leased assets in such a way that it includes leasing payments to the costs.
Rent payments made in advance are treated on an accruals basis. Foreign exchange operations
Assets and payables acquired in foreign currency are valued in Czech crowns at a fixed exchange
rate set on the last day of the previous quarter. ltems of a pecuniary nature were valued using
exchange rate announced by the Czech National Bank applicable on 31 December at the balance

sheet date.

Realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in financial income or
financial expenses of the current year.

11. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires that the Company management makes estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and payables at the balance sheet date
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period under consideration. The
Company management has made these estimates and assumptions based on all relevant
information available to it. However, as follows from the nature of the estimate, actual values may

differ from these estimates in the future.

12. Revenue and expense accounting
Revenues and expenses are accounted on a deferred basis, i.e. in the period to which they are
materially and temporally related.

The profit resulting from long-term business contracts is not accounted for until the order is
completed and invoiced (in the manner specified in the concluded contract, for example, phase

invoicing).
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13. Income tax

Income tax expense is calculated using the applicable tax rate on accounting profit increased or
decreased by permanently or temporarily non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income e.g.
creation and settlement of other reserves and adjustments, representation costs, difference between
accounting and tax depreciations, etc.). The Company records an outstanding income tax payable
in the reserves, less the advances paid. If income tax advances exceed the estimated tax payable
at financial statement date, the difference is recognized as a current receivable.

The deferred tax liability reflects the tax impact of temporary differences between the residual values
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes, taking into account the period of realization.

14. Subsidies

The Company is a recipient of subsidies for operating purposes. The provider of subsidies
is the European Union, as well as ministries and other state institutions, especially the Ministry of
Industry and Trade and the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic. Received subsidies are
accounted in the period, to which they are materially and temporally related, namely in the accounts

of other operating revenues.

15. Subsequent events
The effect of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the book closing date is
recorded in the financial statements, if those events provide additional information about events that
existed at the balance sheet date.
If significant events have occurred between the balance sheet date and the financial statement

closing date, taking into account events that occurred after the balance sheet date, the
consequences of these events are described in the notes to the financial statements, but are not

recognized in the financial statements.
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4) Fixed Assets
a) Intangible fixed assets (in TCZK)

Purchase cost

Opening [ . Closing
Velonce Additions Retirements Transfers balance
Software 180,527 - -11,292 7,233 176,468
Other valuable rights 866 ) ) ) 866
Deposits given - _ - - .
Intangible fixed assets in progress 1,032 7,263 - -7,233 1,062
Total 2021 182,425 7,263 -11,292 - 178,396
Total 2020 175,726 8,299 -1,600 - 182,425
Adjustments and accumulated depreciations
Opening Deprec | Closing
balance iations RETEHETE balance Book vaiue
Software -157,750  -8,757 11,292 -155,216 21,252
Other valuable rights -188 -17 - -205 661
Intangible fixed assets in progress - - - - 1,062
Total 2021 157,938  -8,774 11,292 155,421 22,975
Total 2020 150,250  -9,288 1,600 157,938 24,487

Valuable rights, patents and licenses are depreciated over their useful lives as specified in the
relevant agreement.

As of 31 December 2020, and 31 December 2021, the total amount of low-value intangible assets
not stated in the balance sheet was 11,465 TCZK and 11,490 TCZK.
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b) Tangible fixed assets (in TCZK)

Acquisition cost

Sl Merge;r Additions Retirements Transfers glosing
balance effect balance
Land 15,666 i - -2 -17 15,647
Buildings 1,060,207 - - -8 46,288 1,106,488
Machines, apparatus and
installations 1,105,989 ) - -38,377 79,836 1,147,448
Means of transport 33,735 - - -409 2,802 36,128
Inventory 7,299 . - - 144 7,443
Other small tangible assets 129,572 - - -3,152 13,822 140,242
Valuation difference on
acquired assets -3,857 N ) ) ) <4680
Other tangible fixed assets 31 - - - B 31
Advances provided for
tangible fixed assets 10,000 - 12,728 - -21,384 1,344
Tangible fixed assets in
progress 37,848 - 176,026 - - 121,49 92,383
Total 2021 2,396,690 ] 188,754 -41,048 - 2,543,496
Total 2020 2,250,369 69,468 103,222 -26,369 - 2,396,690
* see Point 3 (p) of the text of Annex
Adjustments and accumulated depreciations

Opening Merge*r Depreciati Sales Retiremen Closing Adjustme Book value

balance effect ons ts balance nts
Land - - - - - - - 15,647
Buildings -521,685 - -23,610 - 8 -545,287 - 561,200
Machines, apparatus -
and installations -726,853 -53,836 -2,323 38,377 -744,635 - 402,813
Means of transport -14,874 - -1,398 - 409 -15,863 - 20,265
inventory -4,223 - -386 - - -4,609 - 2,834
Other small tangible -80,687 - 15,186 -4 3,152 92,725 ; 47,517
assets
Valuation difference on -
acquired assets 3.657 - - - 3,657 - -
Other tangible fixed } - ) } } } ) 31
assets
Advances provided for -
tangible fixed assets ) } ) ) . ) st
Tangible fixed assets -
in progress ) . ) ) ) ) 92,383
Total 2021 -1,344,665 - -94,416 -2,327 41,846  -1,399,462 - 1,144,034
Total 2020 -1,273,375 -5,816 -91,281 -537 26,344  -1,344,665 - 1,052,025

* see Point 3 (p) of the text of Annex

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the total amount of small tangible assets not
stated in the balance sheet was CZK 62,671 TCZK and 65,798 TCZK.

The valuation difference on the acquired assets in the amount of 3,657 TCZK aro,
contribution of Energoprojekt Praha, s.r.o. to the Company in 2002.
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Assets (building and land) at purchase cost of 290,209 TCZK and remaining value of 133,332 TCZK
and at purchase cost of 291,202 TCZK and remaining value of 128,923 TCZK was as of 31
December 2020 and as of 31 December 2021, pledged to cover the Framework Agreement on

providing the financial services at Komer¢ni banka, a.s.
The easements recorded in the Real Estate Register related to the Company were as follows:

Cadastral territory of Husinec u ReZe:

1. Management, maintenance and repair of liquid nitrogen networks and pipelines, parcels 241/35,
241/12 and 241/5,

2. The right to establish and operate gas facilities, including its accessories, the right to enter and
drive in related to the establishment, modifications, repairs and operation to the extent specified
for RWE GasNet s.r.0. Kligska 940/96, 401 17 Usti nad Labem, parcels 345/49 and 345/50,

3. The easement of walking and driving to the premises of the building by any transport means,
parcel (building plot) 683, 345/49, 345/50 and 345/39,

4. The easement of walking and driving to the premises of the building, parcel (building plot) 623,
283/7, st. (building plot) 898, 283/42 and st. (building plot) 857.

c) Long-term financial assets (in TCZK)

Statement of the movement of long-term financial assets.

Balance as of  Balance as of Balance as
31 December 31 December Additions Decreases  of 31 December
2019 ) 2020 2021

Participations — controlled 831,538
or controlling entity 315,571 1,132,110 - - 300,572
Loans and credits —
controlled or controlling 42,782 7,786 30,000 - 3,000 34,786
entity
Participations —
substantial influence LI ) B - N
Other long-term securities
and participations 1,311 1,311 - - 1,311
Adjustments B -973 B - _ -994 - -994
Total 359,665 1,141,207 29,006 -303,572 866,641

Financial assets are valued at acquisition cost. In 2021, an overdraft credit was provided to Centrum
vyzkumu Rez s. r. o. in the amount of 30 MCZK.

Overview of the status of shares in joint-stock companies in CZK

Name and legal form of the company Number of shares Value in CZK
Vodary Kiadno — Mélnik, a.s.” 1,657 1,306,045
Chemoprojekt, a.s. 3 3,300
Plynoprojekt, a.s. 3 1,732
Vitkovice, a.s. 3 32

* Equity share sold on 21 February 2022
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Controlled and managed companies and companies under substantial influence as of
31 December 2021 (in TCZK):

Name and legal form of the Centrum vyzkumu Rez Vyzkumny a zkusebni SKODA PRAHA a.s.

company S.r.0. ustav Plzefi s.r.o.

Registered office of the Hlavni 130, ReZ, Tylova 1581/46 Duhova 1444/2, Michle,
company: 250 68 Husinec 301 00 Plzefi 140 00 Prague 4
Stake in % 100 100 100
Total assets 647,042 162,156 463,027
Equity 377,761 117,529 287,454
Registered capital and 370,000
capital funds 422,984 70,771

Funds from profit 722 3,577 11
Profit (loss) of previous - 18,712
years - 49,263 42,150

Profit (loss) of current - 63,845
period 3,318 1,031

Acquisition price of 487,143
shares/stake 28930 75000

Nominal value of the 370,000
share/stake 305,277 35,771

Adjustments - - -
Intrinsic value of the 287,454
share/stake 374,443 117,529

Dividends _ - - -

Controlled and managed companies and companies under substantial influence as of
31 December 2020 (in TCZK):

Name and legal form of the Centrum vyzkumu Rez Vyzkumny a zkusebni SKODA PRAHA as.

company S.I.0. ustav Plzefi s.r.o.

Registered office of the Hiavni 130, Rez, Tylova 1581/46 Duhova 1444/2, Michle,
company: 25068 Husinec 30100 Pizedt 140 00 Prague 4
Stake in % 100 100 100
Total assets 690,742 157,650 900,877
Equity 374,443 116,751 651,875
Registered capital and 700,283
capital funds 422,984 70,771

Funds from profit 722 3,577 15
Profit (loss) of previous 52,505 41.966 0
years ’ !

Profit (loss) of current 3242 437 -48,423
period '

Acquisition price of 787,714
shares/stake 289.5% 75,000

Nominal value of the 670,572
share/stake 305,277 35,771

Adjustments - - -
Intrinsic value of the 651,875
share/stake 374,443 116,751

Dividends - - -

Financial information about these companies in 2020 and 2021 was obtained from the unaudited
financial statement of the individual companies.
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5) Inventories

The valuation of work in progress is reduced to the selling price through an account of adjustments
that is reported in the adjustment column in the attached balance sheet. The adjustment was
determined by the management of the Company based on assessment of the profitability of projects
in progress (see Point 7).

6) Receivables

In 2020 and 2021, adjustments were made for outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful,
based on an analysis of individual receivables as well as the age of their balances (see Point 7).

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, receivables overdue for more than 365 days
amounted to 32,632 TCZK and 33,627 TCZK.

Due to uncollectibility, rejection of bankruptcy and settlement or non-satisfaction of claims in
bankruptcy proceedings, the Company wrote off claims in the amount of 244 TCZK and 122 TCZK

expenses in 2020 and 2021.

Long-term trade receivables as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, consist mainly of a
retention and a receivable from the sale of assets to a related party

Receivables from related parties see Point 20.

7) Adjustments

Adjustments represent a temporary decrease in the value of assets (listed in Points 4, 5 and 6).

Changes to accounts of adjustments (in TCZK):

i Balance as Balance as Balance

Adjustments of 31 December Adjustment  Adjustment o5 o ber Adjustment  Adjustment as

as of 2019 creation accounting 2020 creation accounting  of 31 Dece
mber 2021

Tangible fixed

assets

Long term

investments 973 - -973 - 994 - 994

Work in

progress 5,133 - -3,824 1,309 97 . 1,406

Receivables —

statutory 6,184 34 - 6,218 - -425 5,793

Receivables - 81,055 8,276 17,869 71,462 5,919 -15,555 61,826

other

Statutory adjustments are created in accordance with the Act on Reserves and are tax eligible.

8) Short-term financial assets and cash

As of 31 December 2020, and 31 December 2021, the Company had the following balances of

accounts with limited disposal:
- 80,930 TCZK in 2020 and 88,078 TCZK in 2021 in Ceska spofitelna, a. s., m
- 21,002 TCZK in 2020 and 31,503 TCZK in 2021 in Komeréni banka, a. s. /0
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Blocked accounts in Ceska spofitelna, a.s. relate to creating statutory reserves for the
decommissioning of nuclear facilities. Blocked account in Komeré€ni banka, a.s., relate to creating

reserves for repairs of tangible assets.

The Company has a total of four overdraft current accounts that allow it to draw loans up to a total
of 100,000 TCZK. As of 31 December 2020 and as of 31 December 2021, the Company did not

make use of credit.

9) Accrued assets

Deferred expenses mainly include accrued property insurance, service contracts, membership fees,
license fees and rents and are accounted to the expenses of the period to which they materially and

temporally belong.

10) Equity

Statement of changes in equity (in TCZK):

Registered
capital

Differences
from
Jther capitaltransformati
funds ons of
business
sorporations

Other
reserve
funds

Statutory and
other funds

Retained
earnings
from
previous
years

Profit (loss) of

current period Total

Balance as
of 1 January 202
0

Profit distribution
of the previous -
year

524,139

Allocation to
social funds

Drawing from
research and
development
fund

Profit (loss) of
current period

Balance

as of

31 December 2
020

Profit distribution
of the previous -
year

Allocation to the
environmental -
damage fund

524,139

Drawing from
the research and
development
fund and the
fund for
liquidation of
environmental
burdens.

_Allocation to
social funds

Profit (loss) of _
current period
‘Balance as
. of 31 December
2021

524,139

85,149 27,367

85,149 27,367

85,149 27,367

104,828

104,828

104,828

273,056

-2,173

270,883

-7,811

263,068

669,344

79,510

2,173

751,027

301,778

7,811

1,060,617

79,510 1,763,393

-79,510 -

301,778 301,778

301,778 2,065,171

-301,778 -

e
58,329

58,320

58,329 2,123,497
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The Company's registered capital consists of fully subscribed and paid-up registered shares, with a
nominal value of CZK 1,000 in the number of 524,139 shares.

Other capital funds consist of monetary and non-monetary donations.

Other reserve funds are intended to cover potential losses of the Company. Statutory and other
funds are intended to cover the costs of addressing the tasks of science and research and
environmental damage beyond the reserves. In 2020 and 2021, an amount was drawn from the
research and development fund based on the internal rules for the management of research projects
amounting to 1,619 TCZK and 6,852 TCZK. In 2021, the amount of 959 TCZK was drawn from the

fund for environmental burdens.

Based on the decision of the general assemblies of the Company of 24 June 2020 and 24 June
2021, the above-mentioned profit distribution for 2019 and 2020 was approved. The General Meeting
of the Company decided not to pay out dividends from the profit of 2019 and 2020. The Company
anticipates that a similar decision on profit distribution will apply in 2021, too.

11) Reserves

Changes in reserve accounts (in TCZK):

_ Balance as . Balance as . Balance as

Reserves of 31 Reserve Aceotintn of 31 Reserve Fieeguntn of 31
December creation 9 December creation 9 December
2019 reserves 2020 reserves 2021

Reserve for income
tax
Statutory —
decommissioning of 104,788 7.147 - 111,935 9,825 - 121,760
nuclear facility
Statutory - repairs of 21,000 10,500 ; 31,500 ; - 31,500
tangible assets ’ ’ ’ }
Reserve for liquidation
of environmental 272,942 9,534 -47,121 235,355 9,534 -39,880 205,009
damages
Other 131,066 112,296 -43,322 - 200,040 63,310 -59,265 204,0§
Total 529,796 139,477 -90,{4_3 - 578,830 82,669 -99,145 562,354

The statutory reserve was created for the purpose of decommissioning nuclear facilities in
accordance with the Atomic Act and for repairs of tangible assets based on the Act on Reserves.

Other reserves are created to cover future costs of projects, litigation, remuneration and leave not
taken and radioactive waste treatment.

12) Short-term payables

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the Company had short-term payables overdue
for more than 90 days in the amount of 512 TCZK and 160 TCZK.

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the Company records 16,434 TCZK and 16,661

TCZK of due payables in respect of social security and health insurance premiums. @\\
Estimated accounts of liabilities mainly include estimates of remuneration and socnfl@‘hg,luealth,ﬂ

‘insurance for these remuneration, insurance and non-invoiced deliveries. g 04 = }
Payables to related parties (see point 20). '1‘94’.}9 g,
LN ,‘\\.\
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13) Payables to credit institutions

The Company does not record any payables to credit institutions.

14) Accruals of liabilities

Deferred revenues include invoicing of services and are accounted to income of the period which it
materially and temporally belongs.

15) Derivatives

The Company has concluded contracts for trading derivatives. As of 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the Company remeasured the derivatives to real value and the real values of
derivatives are reported in other receivables or other payables.

The following table gives an overview of the nominal amounts and positive and negative real values
of open hedging derivatives as of 31 December:

2020 2021
Contract/ Real value Contract/ Real value
(TCZK) Nominal Positive Negative Nominal Positive Negative
Forwards 19,955 - -58 19,955 4 -
Total derivatives intended 19,055 } 58 19,955 4 }

for trading

16) Income tax

Based on the preliminary calculation, the Company enumerated the tax as follows (in TCZK):

2020 2021
Profit before tax 323,234 78,501
Deductible item for research and development - -2,208
Non-taxable revenues -252,235 -54
Differences between accounting and tax depreciations -20,445 -20,080
Creation/reversal of adjustments -14,026 -9,539
Creation/reversal of reserves 31,395 -26,297
Creation/reversal of a tax non-eligible estimated accounts -16,084 -9,750
Other social costs 7,545 8,628
Other tax non-eligible items 21,532 17,920
Taxable income 80,916 37,121
Income tax rate 19% 19%
Tax 15,374 7,053
Tax allowance -79 -236
Adjustment of tax of previous years 2,333 1,104
Due tax 17,628 7,921
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The Company calculated deferred tax as follows (in TCZK):

2020 2021
Deferred Deferred
. Deferred tax Deferred tax
Deferred tax items receivable tax receivable tax
payable payable
Difference between the book value and the
tax residual cost of fixed assets ) 71,536 ) 75,408
Other temporary differences: - - - -
Adjustments to receivables 13,510 - 11,606 -
Adjustments to inventories 249 - 267 -
Adjustments to fixed assets - - - -
Reserves 82,687 - 77,696 -
Estimated accounts 21,056 - 19,554 -
Total 117,502 71,536 109,123 75,408
Net 45,966 - 33,715 -

17) Assets and payables not recognized in the balance
sheet.

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the Company had assets and payables that are
not recognized in the balance sheet. These are assets kept in off-balance sheet records and car

leasing.
The Company has leased cars in the form of operating and financial leasing.
Assets of companies leased in the form of operating leases as of 31st December 2020 and 31

December 2021 (in TCZK):

= A - The amount of rent ~ The amount of rent Acqusition price from the
Description Terms/conditions in 2020 in 2021 oviet

Passenger cars 92 vehicles 9,649 10,237 39,191

Assets leased by the Company in the form of financial leasing (i.e. the lessee repurchases the
assets at the end of the lease period) as of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 (in TCZK):

Breakdown of the amount
Instalments of

The sum of the instalments of of future payments
rent from :
rent payments . rent from according to the actual
; financial lease :
for the entire et ot as financial lease due date as
period of 31 Dyezember actually paid as of 31 December 2021
Deadlines/ of the expected 2021 of 31 December  Due within Due after
_ De_script_ion IS Conditions rent 2020 one year one year
Passenger cars 2 vehicles 2,978 ) 2,978 2,850 0 0
.Guarantees in favour of creditor as of 31 December 2021:
Liability Balance in 2021_ =G a T Contracting party
Bank guarantee CZK 13,620,000 Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic
Bank guarantee CZK 235,770 DiZ Bohemia s.r.0.
Bank guarantee USD 109,831.60 The Egyptian Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Authority (Egypt)
Bank guarantee USD 200,000 The Egyptian Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Authority (Egypt)
Bank guarantee EUR 86,240 JSC Atomproekt (Russia)
Bank guarantee EUR 34,797 State Enterprise Co. Energoatom (Russia) . O'“".' -
S i o - PV
20,9,
% G 9
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Guarantees in favour of creditor as of 31 December 2020:

‘Liability ) . B Balance in 2020 Contracting party

Bank guarantee CZK 13,620,000 Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic

Bank guarantee CZK 235,770 DIZ Bohemia s.r.o.

Bank guarantee TRY 965,161 Turkish Atomic Energy Authority (Turkey)

Bank guarantee USD 200,000 The Egyptian Nuclear and Radiological Regulatory Authority (Egypt)
Bank guarantee EUR 86,240 JSC Atomproekt (Russia)

Bank guarantee EUR 13,145 Korea Hydro And Nuclear Power Co., (South Korea)

The company registers a Liability Agreement to secure the debt of the subsidiary business
corporation Centrum vyzkumu RezZ s.r.o. The debt consists of the obligations of this company arising
from the Loan Agreement up to the total amount of 3 MEUR with a maturity of 31 June 2023.

18) Revenues

Breakdown of the Company's revenues from ordinary activities (in TCZK):

2020 2021

Revenues by divisions/activities Domestic Foreign Domestic Foreign

Integrity and Technical Engineering o 415,920 44,254 N 525,309 35,810
ENERGOPROJEKT PRAHA 262,979 85,331 240,730 133,037
Nuclear Safety and Reliability 198,717 25,531 218,802 20,204
Radioactive Waste and Decommissioning 63,694 25,609 49,305 33,508
Radio-pharmaceuticals 154,613 3,159 159,088 3,605
Combined services 92,307 81 90,544 2,007
Other services 41,331 47,957 45,823 14,763
Total revenues 1,229,561 231,922 1,329,601 242,934

In other operating revenues the Company also records subsidies for operating purposes received
from the state budget and the EU in the amount of 90,083 TCZK are depreciated in 2020 and in
the value from 86,524 TCZK in 2021 already included in the table above.

19) Personal costs

Breakdown of personal costs (in TCZK):

— . 2020 ) 2021
Members of Met?ers
managemen —
Total t, Total . n?
administratio dmi y
n bodies a m|n|s_tra
tion bodies
Average recalculated number of 683 14 680 14
employees
Wages and remuneration for the
members of the Company's statutory 502,781 21,806 534,225 18,620
bodies
Social security and health insurance 165,579 4,414 176,471 3,687
Other costs 14,606 69 16,908 - 93
_Total p_erédhél costs 682,966 26,289 727,604 22,400

Members of the board of directors and supervisory board are included among the members of the
management, control and administration bodies.

59



UJV Rez, a. s., Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31 December 2021

20) Information on related parties

In 2020 and 2021, the members of the statutory and supervisory bodies and the executive officers
did not receive any loans, granted guarantees, advances and other benefits and do not own any

shares in the Company.
The only benefits for members of the statutory bodies consist of the possibility of using cars for
personal purposes

The Company provides services to related entities in the ordinary course of business of the
undertaking. Sales to selected related parties in 2020 and 2021 (in TCZK):

_ Related entity 2020 2021
CEZ, as. 677,299 824,852
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 66,247 60,474
Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o. 105,276 89,984
SKODA JS a.s. 14,301 12,225
CEZ ENERGOSERV!IS spol. s r.0. 16,450 20,714
SKODA PRAHA a.s. 2,147 8,177
CEZ ICT Services, a.s. 3,208 2,022
Elektrarna Dukovany II, a.s. 65,850 13,315
Elektrarna Temelin I, a.s. 2,032 4,902
Ustav aplikované mechaniky Brno, s.r.o. 3,347 1,004
Vyzkumny a zkusebni Ustav Pizeft s.r.o. 2,755 3,480
Other 2,354 16,765

Receivables from selected related parties as of 31 December (in TCZK):

Related entity 2020 2020 2021 2021

ol short-term long-term short-term long-term
CEZ, as. 318,672 - 353,200 -
Slovenské elektrarne, a.s. 48,153 - 47,196 -
Elektrarna Dukovany Il, a.s. 10,552 - 1,725 692
SKODA JS as. 8,212 - 10,879 -
CEZ ENERGOSERVIS spol. s r.0. 7,733 - 8,913 -
CEZ Energo, s.r.0. 1,485 - 1,574 -
CEZ ICT Services, a. s. 1,785 - 1,513 -
Vyzkumny a zkusebni ustav Pizefi s.r.o. 1,701 - 435 -
Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o. 1,060 - 2,699 -
Other 1,849 - 15,957 -

In 2018, the Company provided a credit facility with a maturity of 31 December 2026 and the current
interest rate of 1Y PRIBOR + 0.35 to its subsidiary Vyzkumny a zkuSebni Ustav Plzef s.r.o. (see

below).

The Company also provided a credit facility in 2021 in the form of a overdraft account with maturity
on 30 June 2023 and the current interest rate of 1Y PRIBOR + 0.50 to its subsidiary Centrum

vyzkumu Rez s.r.0. (see below).
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Loans and credits to controlled or controlling companies and companies under significant influence
as of 31 December (in TCZK):

Company Terms/conditions 2020 2021
Due date on 31

Vyzkumny a zkuSebni tstav Plzefi s.r.0. December 2026 7,786 4,786

Centrum vyzkumu ReZ s. 1. 0. Que dat%’;;o June n.a. 30,000

In 2020 and 2021, the interest income from loans provided reached 339 TCZK and 63 TCZK.

The Company purchases products and uses the services of related entities in the ordinary course of

business of the undertaking
Purchases from selected related entities in 2020 and 2021 (in TCZK):

Related entity 2020 2021

Centrum vyzkumu Rez s.r.0. 58,791 90,172
CEZESCO, a. s. 10,992 22,799
SKODA JS as. 15,627 16,302
CEZ Distribuce a.s. 8,448 727
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o. 8,959 0
CEZ ICT Services, a. s. 11,211 10,204
CEZ, a.s. 1,464 11,849
Vyzkumny a zku$ebni Gstav Pizen s.r.o. 11,874 6,976
CEZ Energetické sluzby 0 15,348
SKODA PRAHA a.s. 44 17,573
Other 9,263 10,240

Payables to selected related parties as of 31 December (in TCZK):

2020 2020 2021 2021
Related entity
short-term long-term short-term long-term
_(_);ntrum vyzkumu ReZ s.r.o. o 28,259 - 54,359 .
SKODA JS ass. 10,730 - 9,993 -
CEZ Korporatni sluzby, s.r.o. 975 - 0 -
Vyzkumny a zkusebni dstav Plzeii s.r.o. 5,379 - 552 -
Ustav aplikované mechaniky Brno, s.r.o. 4,840 - 0 -
CEZESCO, a.s. 3,005 - 9,358 -
CEZ, a.s. 404,737 - 2,107 -
CEZ ICT Services, a. s. 824 - 1,390 -
SKODA PRAHA as. - - 21,540 -
Other 1,328 - 1,645 -

* The stated value of the payable in 2020 includes the amount of 404 MCZK, which is the instalment of the purchase price for a 100%

business share in SKODA PRAHA a.s, due by 31 March 2021. The last instalment (performance component) should be made
depending on the results achieved by the purchased company in the maximum amount of 21 MCZK not later than 31 December 2025

and it is not recorded in the company's statements.

In 2020 an.d' 2021, purchases of assets from related entities amounted to 144 TCZK and
49,593 TCZK.
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21) Significant items of profit and loss

Other operating revenues consist mainly of subsidies received (see Point 18) or compensation from
the insurance company.

Other operating expenses consist mainly of property insurance.

Other financial costs and revenues consist mainly of realized and unrealized foreign exchange
losses and profits.

22) Significant events that occurred after the balance sheet
date

In the course of the financial statement preparation period the war in Ukraine is ongoing.

This war and sanctions related against to Russian Federation have a negative impact/influence for
the business both in Ukraine and Russia.

The unforeseen a raw material market price increasing, fuels, energy concurrently and volatility
increased exchanges rates greatly complaint the prediction further market prices development and
key macroeconomic indicators.

We monitor and analyse the situation continuously and its potential impacts onto company operation
including possible impacts to its continuous duration. Based on the evaluations of all actual available
information we believe that this war doesn’t have a significant impact to the financial statement of
the current year and doesn't exist significant uncertainty refer to the company continuous

duration.

23) Statement of changes in equity (see Point 10.)

[

Approved on 3 May 2022

Signature of the statutory body Signature of the statutory body Personal responsible
for the financial

statements

';{ ;f?:"’ / ’
/’ // Z r‘/ C/ 4

7*“%_ O }.,X",--(:.'-.-_f WM |
'\Ing. Dgﬁiel Jificka Ing. Tomas Novotny Ilvana Kusnirova
Chay-‘han of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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IDENTIFICATION OF UJV Rez, a. s.

UJV Rez, a. s.

Hlavni 130, Rez
250 68 Husinec
Czech Republic

Registered in the Commercial Register kept by the
Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Insert 1833

Year of establishment: 1992

Legal form: joint-stock company

Ident. No. 46356,088

Tax Ident. No. CZ46356088

Bank details: Komeréni banka, a. s., account No. 1137201/0100
Phone: +420 266 172 000

Fax: +420220940840

Internet: www.ujv.cz

E-mail.: ujv@uijv.cz

Deadline for the C6ntent of the Annual Report for 2021: 3 May 2022
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